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LABOR LAW; WHEN COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELA­
TIONS HAS JURJSDICTION OVER CLAIMS FOR OVERTIME 
CO!llPENSATIOr:l. - In the case ut bn r, the controversy bet­
ween 39 employees and the NASSCO over payment for work in 
exce~s of eight hour s, including Sundays, legal holidays and night­
time, may properly be regarded to be within the scope of the 
powers of tjie Industrial Court. s ince it is practically a . labor 
dispute that may lead t o confli~t between the employees and the 
management. If the claimant s were not actual employees of the 
NASSCO, a s for example, they ha\'e severed their connection 
with it or were dismissed, but do not insist on reinstatement, 
their claim fo r overtime compensation would bcrome simply a mo­
netary demand properly cognizable by the re~u\ar courts and not 
by the Court of Industrial Relations . 

SilTH'Qll M. GQpr11uco & Lorenzo R .. ~fosq11eda, for the peti­
tioner. 

Onofn. P. G1rnvaru, fo r the r espon dents. 

Alfrrclo Salas, for the respondent Court C. I . R. 

DECI S IO N 

As st a ted in petitioner's memorantfo m in li eu of oral a n,'1.1-
r>1ent, the question in this case is whether the Court of Industr ial 
Relations ha s jurisdiction t o take cognizance r.f monetary d t?.iins 
for over t ime work. 

The facts are: 

On April 15, 1957, Jmoe Abidn~' and 38 other persons, all em­
r- loyees of the National Shipyard and Steel Corporation - NASS. 
CO for short - filed with the said Court, a petition for addi. 
tional compensation due to overtime services rendered. They al­
leged they had been required by the Corporation t.o work, and 
worked, on Sundays and lega l holiciays, at nig httime, and morn 
than eight hours a day, without receiving extra wages. 

Resisti ng the clnim, the Corporation challenged the Court's 
jurisdiction. 

After trial, the Court on November 22, 1957, entered an or­
der requi ri ng additiorial compensation for such overtime work. 
It also directed t.he Examiner of the Cou rt to compute from the 
books and l'ecords of the Corporation the amounts truly owing 
to each of the claimants. 

A motion for reconsideration was denied. Then on Feb­
ruary 14, 1958, the Court Exami11cr rendered a partial report. 
Over the Corporation's opposition, the Court approved such report 
and according ly direct.cd execution of its order to pay. 

Whereupon NASSCO announced its intention W appeal for 
review to this Su preme Court ; and on April 2, 1958, it filed a 
petition (G .R. No. L-1 3732) subm itting the following issues : 

" 1. Does the Cour t of Industrial Relat ion s have the ju­
risdiction after th e passage and effeetivity of the I ndustrial 
Peace Act (Republic Act No. 875) on June 17, 1953, over 
money claim for alleged unpaid overtime compensation? and 

2. l s the ''Order" of the Court of Industrial Relations 
which directs the Court Examiner to compute and report to 
the court the amount of overtime compensation of t he claim-

nnts a decision \•1 hich becomes final when no appeal is in­
terposed therefrom within the reglamentary period? 

Denying the jurisd iction of the Industrial Court, NASSCO 
cited several decisions of this Tribunal which at first glance, 
sustained its position. However, in viC'w of other decisions up­
holding such jurisdiction, the petition fo1· review was on April 11, 
1958, di smissed /01· lack of ?nerit. A motion for reconsideration 
failed. 

Thereafter, en May 16, 1958, after the said dismissal of 
NASSCO's petition, the Court Examiner presented to the Indus­
trial Court another partial report of the additional compensation 
t c which tht> claimant-employees were entitled for overtime work. 
NAS SCO filed its opposition, but it wr.s overruled pnrtly because 
it was filed b<>yond the five-day period provided by the Rules of 
Court; pa rtly because the matter of payment and the computa­
t ion of overtime pay had been practically approved by the Su· 
premc Court when it dismissed the petition in G. R. No . L-13732; 
ti.lld principally because the op position to the Report ( 1) did not 
rest on an}' valid foundation . 

Consequently, 011 June 14, 1958. NASSCO submitted this new 
petition f or review by writ of certiorari , against the same par. 
ties impleaded in G.R. No. L-13732 and raising the same question 
of jurisdiction of the Indust rial Court. Besides, it alleged that 
its opposition to the additional Report had been set aside in pur­
suance of a Ruic of the Industrial Court, which ~ petition.er con­
h 'nds - is either non-existing or illegal . 

This petition was given due course because of the allegations 
concerning the five-day period. Upon careful consideration, how­
ever, it appears that the objci:tion to t he Report (2) turned out 
to be without factual basis. 

Realizing its slim chance to prevai l on question of fact, pe· 
titioner finally limited it.s contention to the question of jurisdic­
tion. However, that point was the pri1 1(:i pal isi;sue in G.R. No 
L-13732, between the same parties arising from t he same par­
ticular controversy befo re the Industrial Court; and we ruled 
hy our resolution of April 14, 1958, that petitioner's petition on 
the matter had no m.erit . That resolution having become final, 
i ~ now the law of the ca se ; and the implementation of the order 
thereby uphe ld, may not be blocked by this second petition. 

At any rate, we think that this controversy between 39 cm­
r!oyees and the NASSC O over payment for work in excess of 
<>ight hours, including Sundays, legal holidays and nighttime, may 
properly be regarded to be within the scope of the powers of 
the Industrial Court, since it is practically a labor dispute that 
may lrad to conflict between the employees and the management. 

If the claimants were n~t actual employees of the NASSCO­
e.g . they have severed their connection with it or were dismi ssed, 
but do not insist on r einstatement - their claim for overtime 
compensation would become simply a monetary demand propel'ly 
cognizable by the regular courts. 

The petition for review is denied. The order appealed from 
i~ affirmed. 

Paras , C.J., llautistci A 11yclo, La;n·ador, Concepcion, B1ulen· 
cia aml G11licr1·cz David, JJ. , concurred. 

Padilla, Montemayol' a11d Barrcm, JJ., took no part. 

( 1) The computation of wages was inexact, and there 
deductions to be made, etc. 

( 2) See footnote No. 1. 
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II 

/ Pl·icc Stabilization C&rporatnon, Petit-ioner, vs. Court of !nd:us­
trial Rela tions and Prisco Workers' Union, et al., G.R. No. L-
13806, May 23, Hl60, Barrera, J . 

1. LABOR LAW· OVERTIME COMPENSA'fION; JURISDIC­
TION. - Wh~re the employer-employee relationship is still 
existing or is sought to be reestablished because of its wrong­
:Cul severance, as where the employee seeks reinstatement, the 
Court or Industrial Relations has jurisdiction over all claims 
arising out of, or in conneation with the employment, such as 
those related ~o the Minimum Wage Law and the Eight-Hour 
Labor Law. After the termination of the relationship and 
no reinstatement is sought, such claims become mere money 
claims, and come within the jurisdiction of the regular courts. 

" CIVIL L!_\W; CONTRACTS; RATIFICATION. - In the case 
at bar, a contract of employment "Xists between petitioner and 
and claimants-respondents, and that pursuant to the terms there· 
of, the latter are to render 8 hours labor. When petitioner's of­
ficial required respondents to render an additional hour work, 
and the respondents had to comply, a supplemental contractual 
obligation was created both under the terms of the original 
contract of employment and of the Eight Hour Labor Law, 
such that additional work was to be compensated. That the 
memorandum giving rise to this situation was original!y ·un­
authorized did not make it illegal to the extent of not being 
capable of ratification by the duly authorized official of pe­
titioner corporation. 

DECISION 

This is a petition for review by ce1 tiorari tnken by the Pr' c" 
Stabilization Corporation (PRISCO) from the decision of the 
Court of Industrial Relations (in case No. 840-V[67]) of December 
2i, 1957. 

It appears that. under date of F ebruary 15, 1955, respondent 
PRISCO Workers' Union, a labor organization duly registered with 
the Department of Labor, filed with respondent court, a petition 
vraying that herein petitioner-employer PRISCO be ordered to pay 
its present employees, claimants-members of the said Union, their 
basic pay and at least 25 % additional compensation for one hour 
overtime work they had previously rendered as security guards of 
petitioner, from April 17, 1958 to January 13, 1954, and the addi­
tional compensation of at least 25 % for the work they have been 
1·endering on Sundays and legal holidays, from March 7, 1954 and 

Or, March 15, 1955, the petitioner filed an answer denying res­
pondent Union's claim for payment of one hour overtime work, 
asserting that such ov.ertime, if rendered, not having been au­
thorized; although some of the said claiman ts had rendered work 
on Sundays and legal holidays, the same had already been paid 
from March 6, 1954; and f inally alleging that the said claim for 
work on Sundays and legal holidays had already been withdrawn. 

The case was thereafter heard and. after hearing, respondent 
court on December 27, 1957, issued an order requiring peti ­
tioner to pay the said claimants, members of respondent Union, 
their basic pay and 25 % additional compensation for the one hour 
overtime work they had rendered from April 16, 1953 to January 
1S, 1954. However, for lack of evidence and in view of a peti­
tion signed .by 59 of the 131 claimants wlthd:·awin;:t" th ~ir claim for 
pay for work per-formed on Sundays and legal holidays, the court 
dismissed the second claim. 

On January 8, 1958, petitioner corporation filed a motion for 
reconsideration of said order, which motion was resolved by res· 
pondent eourt, en bane, as follows: 2 judges voting for strai.g-ht 
denial; 2 judges voting for the setting aside of the order as null 
and void on the ground of lack of jurisdiction; and 1 judge oon­
curring in the denial of the motion for reconsideration, on the 

ground that the question of lack of jurisdiction has not been 
raised in the pleading. As a result, petitioner ccrporation has 
filed this present petition. 

There are 2 questions of law to be determined in this case, 
t.0 wit: (1) whether respondent court had jurisdiction over the 
present claim for overtime pay filed by respondent Union; and (2) 

whether the same couit correctly applied Articles 1393 and 1396 
of the new Civil Code to the case. 

As to the first question, there still seems to be some laek 
of clear and definite understanding of the jurisdiction of the Court 
of Industrial Relations, with regards to money claims of laborers 
or employees against their employers The fact that in the pre­
sent case the judges themselves of the Court of Industrial Re­
lations, are divided on this matter, attests to the existence of such 
misapprehension. It is well therefore to review some of the leading 
decided cases touching on this point, fo!" the purpose of clarifying 
this fundamental question. 

In the PAFLU v. Tan oasc, (') we held that the Court ol 
Industrial Relations has jurisdiction over cases (1) when the la­
bor dispute affects an industry which is indispensable to the 
national interest and is So certified by the President to the in ­
dustrial court (Sec. 1(}, Rep. Act No. 875); (2) when the con­
troversy refers to minimum wage under the Minimum Wage Law 
(Rep. Act No. 602); (3) when it involves hours of employment 
~nder the Eight-Hour Labor Law (Com. Act No. 444); and (4) 
when it involves an unfair labor practice (Sec. &-a, Rep. Act No. 
875). 

Later, in the oase of Detective and Protective Bureau In­
corporated v, Felipe Guevara, et al., (l) involving claims for 
refund of deductions from respondents' salaries, payment of ad­
ci itional compensation for work performed on Sundays and holi­
days, and for night work, and grant of vacation and sick leave 
pay this Court held that the Court of Industrial Relations had 
jurisdiction, inasmuch as the claimants were all employees of 
the Detective and Protective Bureau , Ina. at the time of the 
filing of their claims in Case No. 764-V in the Court of Industrial 
Relations. To the same effect is the case of Isaac Peral Bowling 
Alley v. United Employees Welfare Association, et al. (G.R. No. 
L-9831, prom. October 30, 1957). 

Subsequently, in the case of Santiago Aguilar v. Jose Sa­
lumbidcs (G.R. No. L-10124, prom. December 28, D57), this Court 
declared that the Court of Industrial Relations had no longer 
jurisdiction to hear and determine the claims of ex-employees 
against their former employer for overtime, wage differential, 
and separation pays. 

Again, in the cases of Roman Catholic Arelhbishop of Manila 
v. Yanzon, et al. (G.R. No. L-12341) and Elizalde & Co., Inc. 
v. Yanzon, et al. (G.R. No. L.12345) jointly dcdded on April 
30, 1958, this Court, in a unanimous opinion, declared: 

"In the present case, it is apparent that the petition 
below is simply for th~ collection of unpaid salaries and 
wages alleged to be due for services rendered years ago. 
No labor dispute appears to be presently involved since the 
petition itself indicatts that the employment has long term­
inated and petitioners nre not asking that they .be reinstated. 
Clearly, the petition does not fall under any of the cases enu­
merated in the Jaw as coming within the jurisdiction of the 
Industrial Court, so that it was an error for that court not 
to have ordered its dismissal. 

" I ndeed, even under Commonwealth Act No. 103, as 
amended by Com. Act No. 559, the court below could not 
have taken cognizance of the present case. For in order for 
that court to acquire jurisdiction under that law, the re­
quisites mentioned in section 4 thereof ~ust nil be present, 

(') G.R. No. T."1 l5 . n rom Aul?'11 ~ t :n. 1956, 52 O.G. fi835. 
(2) G.R. No. L8738, prom. May 31, 1957. 
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one of them being that there must be an industrial or agri­
cultural dispute which is caus ing or likely to cause a strike 
or lockout. With the employment already terminated yea1·s 
ago, this last mentioned requisite cannot be supposed to 
still exist." 

Then came the decision in the NASSCO v, Almin, et al. case 
(G.R. No. L-9055, prom. Novemlx!r 28. 1958) in which this Cuurt 
upheld again the jurisdiction of the Court of Industria l Rela­
tions to hear and determine the claim of respondents a t the time 
presently and actually in the employ of the petitioner - for 
oYertime compensation for work they were then rendering s ince 
1950 on Sundays and holidays and even at night. 

On the sa~e theory, this Tribunal, in the Chua Workers' 
Union (NLU v. City Automotive Company, et al. case,(l) where 
the claimants for differential and overtime pays were former em­
ployees of the respondent company, ruled that the Court of In­
dustrial Relations had no jurisdiction. 

The latest case is that of Monares v. CNS Enterprises, et 
al. (G .R. No. L-11749, prom. May 29. 1959) in which this Cou1·t, 
speaking through the Chief Justice, held that the Court of In­
dustrial Relations and not the Court of First Instance, has ju-
r isdiction where the claimant, although no longer in · the service 
of the employer , seeks in his petition the payment of differential 
ar.d overtime pay and his reinsfate-mcnt. 

by the management, General Manager De la Cru7. told the secu1·­
ity guards that the reason why it was being cnforc.ed, was to 
discipline them and that their work was only light and that I 
hour was of no importance. This, the lower cou rt held, amounted 
to a tacit ratification of the memorandum, on the part of thr­
said official who, as claimed by petitioner itself, had the power 
to validly act for it. (See also Sec. 6, Exec. Order No. 350 series 
of 1950.) Hence, the lower court concluded, applying the pro­
visions of Articles 1393 and 1396(~) of the new Civil Code, that 
any defeci:, if any, which said memorandum of the Assistant 
Chief Sccurity Officer may have at the time it was constituted 
was, therefore, cor rected. 

But petitioner urgE's that Articles 1393 anti 1396 refer to 
vuidable contracts and the questioned memorandum is not such 
a contract but an order issued by one not authorized and, there­
fore, is illegal and cannot be ratified tacitly. 

This view is without merit, There is no question that a con­
t ract of employment exists bet.ween J>Ct itioner and claimimts-rc­
spondents, and that pursuant to the terms thereof. the latter 
are to render 8 hours labor. When petitioner's official required 
respondents to render an additional hour work, and the respon­
dents had to comply (as non-compliance was punishable and ac­
tually punished with disciplinary action), a >bupplemental con­
>tractual obligation was created both under the terms of the ori­
ginal contract of employment and of the Eight-Hour Labor Law, 

Analyzing these cases, the underlying principle, it wi!l be ' that such additional work was to be compensated. That the me­
noted in all of them, though not stated in express terms, is that. 
where the employer-employee relationship is still existing or is 
sought to be reestablished because of it.s wrongful severance (as 
where the employer seeks reinstatement), t.he Court of Industrial 
Relations has jurisdiction over all claims arising out of, or in 
~onnection with the employment, such as those related to the 
Minimum Wage Law and the Eight-Hour Labor Law. After the 
termination of the relationship and n{' reinstatement is sought 
such claims become mere money claims, and come within the .ju­
risdiction of the regular courts. 

We are aware that in 2 cases,(4 ) some statements implying 
a different view have been made. but we now hold and declare 
the principle set forth in the next preceding paragraph as the 
one governing all cases of this nature. 

It appearing that in t he present case, the respondent-claim· 
ants are, or at least were, at the time of presenting their claims, 
actually in the employ of herein petitioner, the Court of l ndus­
tTial Relations correctly took cognizance of the case. 

In respect of the second issue, it appears that claimants· 
security guards have been employed and required to observe a 
24-hour guard duty divided into 3 shifts of 8 hours each. On 
April 15, 1953, the Assistant Chief Security Of!icer of petitioncr­
corporation, acting for the Chief Security Officer, issued a Me­
morandum (Annex A). directing the security guards to report 
for duty 1 hour in advance of the usual time for guard wo1·k. 
Pursuant thereto, claimants had been rendering such overtime 
work until January 13, 1954, when the order was revoked after 
a change of management. 

Petitioner, however, contends that sa id memorandum of the 
.Assistant Chief Security Officer was issued without authority 
and, therefore, it is not bound to pay for the alleged overtime. 
But, as found by respondent court, shortly after t he enforcement 
of the aforementioned memorandum, the security guards protest· 
eel to the management of petitioner corporation, more particular­
ly to Mr. Santiago de la Cr uz, General Manager , Atty. Graciano 
Borja, Director, and ]\fr. Espiri tu, Director. Instead of revok­
ing said memorandum on the ground that it was unauthorized 

(l) G.R. No. L-11655, prom. April 29, 1959. 
( 4 ) Mindanao Bus Employees Labor Union (PLUl\I) v. Min­

danao Bus Co., et al., G.R . No. L-9795, prom. December 28, 1957; 
Gomez v. North Camarincs Lumber Cil., Inc., G. R. No. L-l l!l45, 
prom. August 18, 1958. 

morandum giving rise to this situation was originally unautho;·. 
ized did not makt: it illegal to the e:ic tcnt of not ,being capable 
of ratification by the duly authorized official, the General Man-
ager of petitioner corporation. Hence, the lower court correctly 
applied Articles 1393 and 1396, upon the facts found by it in 
this case and amply supported by the record. 

WHEREFORE, finding no error in the deeision appealed 
from and the resolution upholding it, the same arc hereby af-
fi rmed, with costs against the petitioner. 

SO ORDERED. 

Pa)'(IS, C.J., Bengzr.m, Mo11t c11111.yor, /Ja ut i;;ta Angelo, Labra­
tlor, Concepcion a11d Gutierrez David, JJ., concurred. 

J.B.L. Reye11, J., on leave, took no part. 

j Ill 
· d . . . A . Margarita Leyson Laurent\?, A tnlntstratrix- ppd/ce, v s . E li-

seo Caunca, Mavant-Appellanr, G. R. No. L-1467'7, A pril 29 1960, 
Bautista Angelo, J. 

1.,ATORNEY'S FEES ; REASONABLE AWARD OF AT­
TORNEY'S FEES. - In the case at bar, although the ser­
vices of appellant to the estate were not considered to the 
satisfaction of the heir and of the court, yet the oourt de­
cided to award as attorney's fees the sum of fl,700.00, in 
addition to the sum of P80000 already received by him 
from the former administrator. This award is reasonable con­
sidering that the value .of the gross assets of the estate only 
amounts to Pl5,973.65. 

') ID.; WHEN ATTORNEY'S FEES SHOULD NOT BE 
CHARGED AGAI NST THE ESTATE. - Where the con­
tract calls for payment of attorney's fees for services C may 
render personally to the administratix M, the latter should 
be the one liable for such services and not the estate, although 
such services redounded indirectly to the benefit of the estate. 

( 5) " ART. 1393. Ratification may be effected expressly or 
tacitly. It is understood that there is a tacit ratification if, with 
knowledge of the reason which renders the · contract voidable a nd 
such reason having ceased, the person who has a right to invoke 
it should execute an act which necessarily implies an intention 
to waive his right." 

"ART. 1396. Ratification cleanses the cont ract from all i t~ 
defects from the moment it was const ituted." 
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Fidel J. Silva, for administratrix-appellee. 
Eliseo Camtctt, for movant-appe\lant. 

DECIS I ON 

Honofre Leyson died in the City of Manila on December 18, 
1946 leaving no will but real and personal properties worth 
ra0,275.89. He died single. He left neither ascendant nor des­
cendant, but was survived by Margarita Leyson Laurente, 
daughter of a sister who predied the deceased. 

On March 4, 1947, one J usta Gomes, cousin of the deceased, 
instituted intestate proceedings for the settlement of his estate 
prnying that she !rn appointed special administratrix and alleging 
that she was the only nearest collateral relative that survived 
the deceased. In view of opposition to her appointment on the 
part of Margarita Leyson Laurente, in order not to delay the 
appointment _of a regular administrator, on December 8. 1!)47, 
Pablo M. Silva and Victorio L. Rodriguez were appointed ' joint 
administrators, though before their appointment Justa Gomes 
was allowed to act as special administratix. On January G, 1948, 
the court issued an order requiring all persons having claims 
against the estate to file the same with the clerk of cpurt with­
in six months from first publication, which orde1· was publish 
in a newspaper on January 10, 17 and 24, 1948. 

Then a series of incidents had taken place relative to the 
claim of Justa Gomes for compensation as special administrairix 
as well as the claim of her counsel A Uy. Pablo M. Silva for at­

. turney's fees, including the incident relative to the appointment 
of the Philippines National Bank as regular administrator, as 
enumerated in appellant's brief, which reached not only the Court 
of Appeals but the Supreme Court. These incidents a1·e oited 
as instances showing the extent of the services rendered by ap­
pellant redounding to the benefit of the estate. Other incidents 
refer to the claims of Justa Gomes that she was a partner of the 
cieceased in acquiring the assets left by him upon his deatll, 
which was also opposed by appellant in representation of hi~ 

client. Then came· several attempts made by Atty. Pablo M. 
Silva on behalf of Justa Gomes to deprive MargaJ"ita Leyson 
Laurente of her right to inherit the properties which culminated 
in the denial of the claim of Gomes and in the declaration of 
said Margarita as the sole heiress of the estate. In all th::se in­
cidents appellant intervened as counsel of heiress Margal'ita. 

,On July 27, 1954, appellant filed an amended motion with the 
court praying that his attorney's fees for services rendered not 
only in behalf of Margarita Leyson but of the estate be fixed 
3t P5,000.00 considering the volume of work performed and the 
extent of the services rendered by him not only for the benefit 
of his client but aho for that of the estate without prejudice of 
deducting from said amount the sum already advanced to him 
a.-; partial payment of his services. On August 9, 1955, the 
l!dministratrix and sole heiress of the estate, who was appellant's 
former client, filed a vigorous opposition alleging, among other 
things, that appellant has already collected the sum of P801).00 
from the estate as attorney's fees with prior authority of the 
court while he also colected the sum of Pl,700.00 from the former 
administrator without authority of court , which latter amount 
forms part of the funds of the estate which were squandered by 
former administrator in conn ivance with appellant, so that, in 
her opinion, appellant was only entitled to the sum of P'800.00 as 
attorney's fees, for which reason sl}e prayed that he be ordered 
to return to the estate the sum of f'l,700.00 he received without 
s3nction of the court. In said written opposition, the administra­
trix makes a narration of several incidents wherein appellant 
has participated but where he has proven to be remiss in the 
pe1 formanoe of his duties as counsel. 

On June 5, 1958, the court issued an order wherein, inso­
far as the claim of appellant is concer ned, it states: "Regarding 
the fees of Atty. Eliseo CauncB., this Court hereby award said 
attorney the amount of f>l,700.00 as fees for services rendered 

for and in behalf of the estate, which amount of Pl,700.00 has 
already been paid to him by the former administrator Victorio L. 
Rodriguez." Di~satisficd with this orcler, he interposed the pre­
sent appeal. 

It appears that in contracting his services as counsel of 
Margarita Leyson Laurente who claims to be the sole heiress of 
the estate of Honofre Leyson, appellant entered into a written 
cvntraet with said Mal'garita · to the effert that if after the ser­
vices had been rendered she would get nothing, counsel would 
a!ro get nothing, but if she would secure what she wanted which 
is to be clcclared as the sole heiress of the estate, then counsel 
would be given reasonable fees. Later, however, this contract 
was amended by fixing his professional fees at P3,000.00 which 
ccntract is now made the basi s of appellant's claim. But berause 
of the extra sei·vices he claims to have rendered to l\Iaq,rarita, 
a ;; well as to the estate, he filed the present amended claim pray­
ing that his attorney's fees be increased to P5,000.00 which, as 
already stated, was strongly objected to by the present adminis­
tratrix who is the very client who conh'acted his servkes and with 
whom he executed the contract abovementionccl. 

The question to be determined is whether the trial court 
acted conectly in awarding to appellant as attorney's fet's only 
this amount of t'l,700.00 which he has already received from the 
former adminisfrator. 

We are inclined to uphold the affirmative. In the first 
11\ace, the contract he entered into v:ith Margarita Leyson Laurente 
was in connection with the services lie l'endered to the latter for 
the purpose of enablng her to be dedared as the sole hefress of 
the estate. Margal'ita was forced to enter into such contract in 
view of the claim of Justa Gomes th.tt she was the only nearest 
~ undving relative of the deceased who was entitled to inherit 
exclusively his property. In effect, all the services rendered by 
him were in furtherance of l\Iargarita's interest although indirect· 
ly they redounded to the benefit of the estate. 

On the other hand, the record shows that in the course of 
the proceedings relative to the settlement of the estate, when Vic· 
h•rio L. Rodriguez was appointed as co-administratoi:, uppellant 
11lso acted as his counsel, even if in doing so he had to act ad­
versely to the interest of his client Margarita, and for his services 
to such administrator, he was paid as attorney's fees with prior 
11uthority of the court the sum of P800.00. In addition, as the 
record shows, he was alsu paid by said administrator the sum 
of f'l,700.00, without authority of court, which, as claimed, was 
taken from the fu nds belonging to the estate which were squandered 
by said administrato1· in the course of his administration. And 
although his services to the estate apparently were not considered 
to the satisfaction of the heir and of the court, yet the latter 
decided to award as attorney's fees the sum of Pl,700.10-0, in addition 
to the sum of PS00.00 already received ·by him from the former 
r,dministrator. After examining the record of this case, and 
considering that the value of the gross assets of the estate, ac­
cording to the inventory submitted by the administsratrix, only 
amounts to P15,193.65, we ;i.re the <opinion that this award is 
reasonable. 

While it may be true that appellant has rendered services 
k Margarita Leyson Laurente, the present administratrix, in 
many incidents which redounded to her benefits, altho indirectly 
trJ the benefit of the estate, we believe that the fees for such 
M•rvices should be charged not against the estate but against Mar­
gal'ita herself. This is in accordance with the contract he has 
e!',tered into with her which was presented as evidence. The con­
tract calls for payment of attorney's fees for services he may 
render personally to Margarita. The latter, therefore, should 
be the one liable for such services. 

Wherefore, the order appealed from insofar as the fees of ap­
pellant is concerned, is affi1 med, without pronouncement as to 
costs. 

Paras, C.J., Bcn[J;:on, Padilla, illontemayOT, /,abradQ?", Connep­
cion, Endencia, Ba,r1·era a.11d G1dicrrei David, JJ., concurred. 
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J IV 
Ce>iar Robles a11d Efoa G. de Rvbl£s, Peti6oncrs, vs. Do11a.t(l 

Ttmario, Consuelo S. de T-im<wio, and the CourlJ of First /nsumcc 
of Camari11e8 Sur, Rcsp<mdr:i1 ts, G.R. No. /,-13911, April 28, 1960, 
Lo..brador, J. 

l. COURTS; POWER OF COURTS ·ro AMEND THEIR 
JUDGMENTS CAN NOT BE INVOKED TO CORRECT AN 
OVERSIGHT OR ERROR. - In the case at bar, there was 
an oversight on the part of the judge and of the Court o.f 
Appeals in not including an order for the payment of in­
terest, and a parallel neglect of counsel for the plaintiff­
appellee in nOt seeking a modification of the judgment in 
either court by the inclusion of the interest on the amount 
of the judgment. There was a judicial oversight which coun­
sel has negleded to i·emedy both in the Court of First In­
stance and in the Cou1t of Appeals. The situation is one 
in which an oversight is sought to be remedied by cla'.iming 
an ambiguity not apparent .in the dispositive part. While it 
was within the power or duty of both the Court of First In· 
stance and the Court of Appeals to have rendered judgment 
for the interest on the amount of the judgment, .neither of 
said courts had noted or remedied the omission. The general 
po,ver of courts to amend their judgments or orders to make 
them conformable to justice, can not he invoked to correct 
an oversight or error, as a judicial error may not be -con. 
sidered as a mere ambiguity, curable without a proper pro· 
ceeding filed befoi·e the judgment had become fi nal. 

2. ID.: I D. - In the present case, considering that the dispo· 
sitive part of both the decision of the Court of First In stance 
and of the Court of Appeals, contain no provision on the in· 
terest to be paid on the judgment , it is beyond the power of 
the respondent court to issue a writ of execution for the 
payment of the principal obligation with the interest there. 
on. because the amount of the interest was not included 'in 
both judgments: 

Mqntemayqr, J .. dissenting: 

3. ID.: DISPOSITIVE PART OF FINAL DECISION CAN BE 
CORRECTED WHEN IT DOES NOT REFLECT THE DE· 
CJSION ITSELF. - There is nothing sacred in the dispo· 
io itive part of a final decision which precludes its being touch­
ed, amended, corr~ted and clarified, when it clearly appears 
thnt said disposit.ive part does not reflect and emlxidr :is it 
should the decision itself. The di~positive part merely con· 
scl ic!ates and expresses briefly the body of the decision and 
its oonclusion and gives it due course. If it makes a mis· 
take, clerical or otherwise, through oversight, omission, that 
mistake could and should, in the interest of justice, be strick· 
l'n down as an intruder that has no reason to be there and 
the corresponding 0correction immediately effected. Otherwi se, 
courts of justice would fail in their -mission and the respon~ 

sibility to administer real, substantial justice or as near it 
as is possible, to the parties on the merits of their claim s 
and defenses, if said court place too much emphasis on and 
adhe1·e too closely to the technicalities of the law. 

4. ID.; ID.; TRIAL COURT SHOULD BE ALLOWED TO 
CORRECT ITS OWN ERROR. - Ordinarily, the judgment 
in a case contained in the dispositive part should be respected 
and followed, specially when it has become final, but when, 
as in the case at bar, there is a manifest error or omission 
which substantially affects the rights of one of the parties, 
and the trial court which had oommitted that error itself 
is disposed and wants to correct its error or omi ssion, the 
Supreme Court should disregard tcC"hnicalities and allow the 
trial cou1·t to correct its own error. 

5. JD.; ID.; FINAL DECISION MUST BE ENFORCED IN ITS 
ENTIRETY. - A final decision must be enforced faithfully. 
fully and in its entirety and courts can not enforce the pay· 

ment of legal interest for another uction fo; enforC"Cment. 
Otherwise, that would mean multiplicity of suits because tho 
winning party would have to bring another action to enforce 
that part of the decision regarding payment of the interest 
which was involuntary omitted in the enforcing decision . 

DECISION 

The records of this Cl.l.Stlo disclose ~hat on May 12, 1!)55, decision 
was rendered by Hon. T. Surlida, Judge of the Court of F irst 
Instance of Camarines Sur in Civil Cnse No. 2516, Consuelo J. 
Timario, plaintiff, vs. Cesar Robles and E lisa G. de Robles, de· 
fendants, declaring that the defendants are indebted to the plain­
tiff in the sum of P9,218,00, with interest at legal rate from the 
f;lin~ of the action until the amount is fully paid. The judgment 
was not appealed and so it became final. The deeision had been 
nmdercd on a complaint filed on November 9, 1953, but the ex­
tended period of redemption of the land which had been Mid with 
right to repurchase and which was then subject of the suit did 
not expire until January 6, 1954. However, no objection was in­
terposed on the ground that the cause of action did not exist at 
the time of the filing of the complaint, so the objection that the 
action was premature was" waived. 

On June 14, H.155, the plaintiff brought another civ il action 
nga in st the same defendants in the same court (civil case No. 
3015) , alleging the existence of the jl<.dgment above alluded to 
and praying that the amount of the judgment (for the sum of 
PH,218.00, with legal interest from November 9, Hl53 until the 
full amount is paid) as well as the costs, be paid by the defend­
ants to the plaintiff. In this latter case, the Court of First In­
stance rendered judgnient on October 17, 1955, ordering the de­
fendants to pay plaintiff "the sum of P9,218.00 with costs against 
them." No order for the payment of interf'st was made in the 
decision, although the court made reference to its own decision 
in Civil Case No. 2516, declaring defendants indebted to plaintiff 
in the sniount of P9,218.00, together with legal interest thereon 
from November 9, 1953. This second case, Civil Case No. 30il5, 
was appealed from the Court of First Instance to the Court of 
Appea ls. The appellate court rendered judgment affirming the 
decision of the lower court in the following terms : 

"WHEREFORE, the decision oppealed from is hereby af­
fomed, with double costs against the appellants, the present 
appeal being frivolous and manifestly intended for delay (Sec· 
lion 3, Rule 131, Rules of Court)." (Annex "B") 

The case having been remanded to the Court of First In· 
st:i.nce for execution, the judge thereof on November 9, 1957, is­
sued an order for execution to issue, including double the amount 
of the costs, in accordance with the confirmatory decision of the 
appellate court (Annex C). On December 14, 1957, the order 
was amended to r ead ns follows: 

"The writ of execution is hereby amended by including 
therein the legal interest in the sum of P9,218.00 from Nov. 
ember 9, 1953 until fully paid ond by doubling only the cost 
in t he Court of Appeals." (Annex "D"). 

A motion to reconsider this amending orde1· was denied, for the 
ulleged reason that in paragraph 1 of the decisiqn, defendants 
were ordered to pay interest. Henro the case was brought to 
this Court upon petition for certiorari, petitioner alleging that th~ 
C(JUl"t of First Instance acted without or in excess of its juris.. 
diction in ordering the amendment of the writ of execution, which 
amendment has altered or changed the decision in Civil Case No. 
3015, whic1' had become final and executory long before the amend­
ment. On the filing of the petition, We ordered that the petition 
bP. given due course and that a writ of Preliminary injunction 
issue to prevent the Sheriff of Camarines Sur from continuing 
the sale of the properties of the petitioner u_nder the writ of e:x· 
ccution. 

The respondents herein have filed an answer to the petition 

June 30, 19GO LAWYERS JOURNAL 169 



fur cC! r tiorari , alleging that the . inclusion of the legal interest in 
the order sought to be set aside iS in accordance with the de<:i­
sion cf the court in Cjvil Case No. 3516, and that the omission 
of the legal interest in the dispositive part of the subsequent case 

the duty of both the Court of First Instance and the Court of 
Appeals to have rendered judgment for the interest on the amount 
of the judgment, neither of said courts had noted or remedied 
the omission. The general power of courts t o amend their judg-

was a mere oversight which had made the decision ambiguous ments or orders to make them conformable to justice, can not 
and subject to clarification, ~;uah that an amendment is necessary be invoked to correct an oversight or error as a judicial error 
in order to make the judgment conform with the pleadings and · may not be considered as a mere ambiguity, curable without a 
the evidence as disclosed in the record itself. JJroper proceeding filed before the judgment had become final. 

The authorities cited by the respondents arC! the cases of 
Locsin vs. Paredes and Hodges, 63 Phil. 87, Velez vs. Martinez 
n.nd Chacon, 63 Phil. 231, Beltran vs. Reyes, 55 Phil. 1004, am! 
Halla vs. Director of Lands, 46 O.G. No. 115487, and the cita­
tions in 49 C.J.S. Sec. 436, pp. 863-864; 867.868. In the first 
c::se of Locsin vs. ParedC!S and Hodges, supra, it was found that 
the word "severally'' was omitted in the decision the amendment 
of which was sought, and it was decided therein that the omis. 
sion of the . word ''sevC!rally" in the judgment created an ambi­
guity which may be clarified ev.en after the decision had become 
final. Note that the omission of the word "severally" actually 
created an ambiguity in the body of the decision. In the case 
of Velez vs. Martinez and Chacon, sitpi:a, Velez was sued in his 
capacity as administrator of the estate, but in the jud g ment he 
was personally made to pay for the amount of the judgrnent. 
The judgment reads as follows: 

"'In \.;ew of the forego ing, it is hereby ordC!rC!d that. the 
herein defendant give to the herein plaintiff Ramon Chacon 
the possession of the land described in the complaint head· 
ing this case and to turn ovC! I' , furthermore, to the said plail\· 
tiff the amount of Pl,326.54 \\;t h interest at G per cent 1ic1· 
annum from March 30, 1930, until fully paid, without costs. 
It is so ordered." 

A writ of execution wa s issued by virtue of the judgment, and 
proceedings having been taken to prevent its enforcement against 
Velez in his capacity a s administrator, the judgment is not agaiI)st 
him personally but in his capacity as administrator. We held in 
that case that the. order issued by the judge was rendered he· 
yond his authority and that the execution issued by virtue of 
the order was al so null and void. 

In the first case dted , Locsin vs. Paredes and Hodges, we 
decla1ed there was ambiguity in the judgment, which ambiguity 
could -be remedied by amendment, a situation which does not ap· 
pear in the case at .bar, in which no ambiguity exists at all. The 
second case of Velez vs. Martinez and Charon is a lso no author­
ity for the case at bar. The action was to annul an order anr' 
a writ of execution issued in pursuance thereto ; it was not a 
mere amendment of a final judgment. Neither can it therefore, 
be applicable to !.he case at bar. So also a ll the cases of Bel­
tran vs. Reyes, .suPJ•a, and Ralla vs. Director of Lands, JJupra, 
wherC!in ambiguous stl.!-tements in the decision needed interpreta­
tion, and such ambiguities authorized inquiry into the body of 
the decision for the pu r pose of clarification. 

In the case at bar, no ambiguity of any kind exists in the 
dispositive part of the judgment. The dispositive part of th,, 
judgment rendered in Civil Case No. 3015, both by the Court of 
First Instance and the Court of Appeals, absolutely makes no 
mention of ally interest on the amount of the judgment, hence 
there is no ambiguity to be clarified from the statements made 
in the body of the deci sion. What actually happened in th1.> C" 

at bar is an oversight on the part of the judge and the Court 
(lf Appeals, in not including an order for the payment of int ,., · 
and a parallel neglect on the part of counsel for the plaintiff­
appellee in not seeki ng a modification of the judgment in either 
court by the inclusion of the interest on the amount of the j11dg­
ment. There was a judicial oversight which counsel has neglect­
ed to remedy both in the Court of First Instance! and in th" 
Court of Appeals. The situation is one in which an oversight 
is rnught to be remedied by claiming an ambiguity not apparent 
i11 the dispositive part. While it was within the power or within 

The situation in the case at bar is covered by Freeman on Judg­
ments, quoted by Us in the case of Marasigan vs. Ronquilto, G.R. 
No. L.5810, prom. January 18, 1954. 

"The genera l power to correct clerical errors and omis­
sions does not authorize the court to repair its own inaction, 
to make the record and judgment say what the court did 
not adjudge, although it had a clear right to do so. The 
court cannot under the guise of correcting its record put upon 
it an order or judgment it never made or rendered, or add 
something to either which was not originally included al. 
though it might and should have so ordered or adjudged in 
the first instance. It cannot thus repair its own lapses and 
omissions to do what it could legally and properly have done 
at the right time. A. court's mistake in leaving out of its 
decision something which it ought to have put in, and ,some­
thing in issue of which it intended but failed to dispose, is 
a judicial error, not a mere clerical mispi-ision, and cannot 
be corrected by adding to the entered judgment the omitted 
matter on the theory of making the entry conform to the 
actual judgment entered." (Freeman on Judgments, Sec. 141, 
Vol. I, p. 273). 

"But the failure of thC! court to render judgment accord­
ing to law must not be treated as a clerical misprision . Where 
there is nothing to show that the judgment entered is not 
the judgment ordered by the court, it cannot be amended. 
On the one hand, it is certain that proceedings for the amend­
ment of judgments ought never to be permitted to become 
revisory or appellate in their nature; ought never to be the 
means of modifying or enlarging the judgment or the judg. 
ment record, so that it shall express something which the 
court did not pronounce, even although the proposed amend­
ment embracC!s matter which ought clearly to have been s? 
pronounced." (Freeman on Judgments, Vol. I, Sec. 142, pp. 
274-275). 

A case in point was decided by this Cou1t in Jabon, et al., 
vs. Alo, et al., G.R. No. L-1094, prom. August 7, 1952. In this 
latter case, the court declared plaintiff owner of the portions of 
the land in question, but no directive! was made in the said judg­
ment to put plaintiff in possession of the said portions adjudic· 
ated to him. After lapse of more than one year since the deci· 
sion had become final, plaintiff moved for a modification of the 
dispositive part of the dC!cision by including therein an order 
directing defendants to vacate the portons of the land in ques­
tion. We held that the dispositive part of the decision can 
no longer be modified as ~rayed for. The authorities cited in 
the memorandum filed by th~ petitioner seem to be in point. They 
are as follows: 

"The only portion of the decision that becomes the sub­
ject of execution is that ordained or decreed in the disposi­
tive part. WhatC!ver may be found in the body of the deci· 
sion can only be considered as part of the reasons or con­
clusions of the Court and while they may serve as guide or 
enlightenment to determine the 'l"Gtio dccidcndi, what is con­
trolling is what appears in the dispositive part of the deci­
sion ." (Rosario Nery Edwards, et al., vs. Jose Arce et al, 
12 Off. Gaz., 2337). 

"The Court should not require the collection of interest 
when the judgment on which it is issued does not give it. 
and interest is not allowed by statute. This has been held 
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to be the rule even where interest on judgment is aUowed by 
statute, if the judgment docs not include it." (33 C.J.S. 
No. 75b, p. '216). 
Considering that the dispositive part of both of the deci!!ions 

of the Court of First Instance in Civil Case No. 3015, and of 

the Court of Appeals in CA G.R. No. 17320-R, contain no pro­
Vision on the interest to be paid on the judgment, we hold that 
it. is beyond the power of the r espondent court to issues a writ 
oi execution for the payment of th~ principal obligation with 
the interest thereon, because the amount of the interest was not 
included in both judgments of the Court of First Instance and the 
Court of Appeals. 

WHEREFORE, the order sought to be reviewed is hereby 
sd aside. The injunction issued by Us is hereby declared per. 
manent, with costs against the respondent Donato Timario and 
Consuelo S. de Timario. 

Paros, i:.J., Bfmgzon, Ba11ti~ta Aw1elo, Co11ccpcion, and CuCier­
t·ez David, JJ., concurred. 

Mcmtcmayor, J., dissenting: 
It is with deep regret that I feel myself constrained to 

dissent from the learned majority opinion penned by Mr . Justice 
Labrador. It is an opinion comprehensive and well written and 
states the facts of the ease correctly and fully. Only that, in 
my opinion, it suffers from a flaw in that it perhaps unwittipgly 
permits a miscarriage of justice by sticking too dosely and 
strictly to the rules and to the technicalities of the law, oveI"­
looking the justice and the relief that respondent Donat.a Ti­
mario and Consuelo S. de Timario fully deserve. 

Respondent obtained a judgment which has long b~ome final, 
against petitioners on May 12, 1955 for the sum of P9,218.0Q 
with interest at t'hJJ legal rate frolTt the filing of the action, that 
is to say, from November 9, 1953. There is absolutely no question 
that the obligation was for f9,218.00 with legal interest1• Res­
pondents brought the present action to enforce said judgment 
for the payment of, P9,218.00 with legal interest. The t rinl court 
in its decis ion mnde reference to this former, final decision., 
calling for the payment of P9,218.00 with legal interest and it 
approved and granted the enforcement, only that in the dis­
positive part of the decision, it involuntarily omitted or forgot 
th(' payment of legal interest. It was a clear oversight or in­
Yoluntary omission. Even the majority opinion says so when it 
stated, "what actually happened in the case at bar is oversight 
on the part of the judge and of the Court of Appeals, in not in­
ciuding an order for the payment of interest." 

Shall we allow a party to suffer actual, real and substantial 
injustice and be c!eprived of the payment of interest even at tho 
legal rate, which interest has been declaI"ed, sanctioned and deter­
mined in a final decision, the courts have overlooked, omitted 
and forgotten to mention the payment of said legal interest? 

There is, in my opinion, nothing sacred or sacrament in the 
dispositive part of a final decision which precludes its 
being touched, amended, corr~ted and clarified, when it dearly 
appears that said dispositive part does not reflect and embody 
as it should the decision itself. The dispositive part merely con­
solidates and expresses briefly the body of the decision and it;; 
conclusion, and gives it due course. If it makes a mistake, 
clerical or otherwise, through oversight, omission, eto., that mis­
take could and should, in the interest of justice be stricken down 
as an outlaw or intruder that has no reason to be there, and 
the corresponding correction or clarificat ion immediately effected. 
OthenYise, courts of justice would fail in their mission and the 
responsibility to administer real, substantial j ustice or as near 
i t as is possible, to the parties on the merit of their claims and 
defenses, if said courts place too much emphasis on and adher<' 
too closely to technicalities of the law. 

Supposing that in the present case, although th~ final deci· 

s;on sought to be enforced called for the payment of P9,218.00, 
the dispositive part of the present decision, although in its body 
it made r eference as it did to and correctly stated the said amount 
of P9,218.00, through oversight or clerical error, placed the com­
ma between the figures 2 and 1 and added one zero after 8, fol. 
i.~wed by the decimal point, so as to make the sum P92,180.00 
instead, and the t r ial court and the Court of Appeals and the 
parties, through oversight, carelessness or overconfidence had al­
lowed said decision with the erroneous dispositive part to become 
final and conclusive. Surely, that 'kind of error would not en­
title the r espondents to receive P92,180.00 instead of P9,218.00, 
neither could it compel the petitioners to pay the said clearly 
incorrect and e1Toneous amount. In that case, this High Tribu­
nal would intervene, examine the record of the case, examine the 
body of the decision, strike down the error in the dispositive 
part and make it conform to the body of the dedsion and the 
merits of the case as found by the trial court. The noble edifice 
of the administration of justice would not long stand and endure 
if judicial errors unintentionally committed through oversight, arc 
allowed to undermine it. And this danger could be effectively 
:n-oided and prevented by a more liberal interpretation and ap-. 
plication of the law. The Rules of Court themselves provide for 
a liberal construction or· the same, 3aying that the rules shall 
be construed liberally in order to promo~ their objective and 
fr, assist the pm·ties in obtaining just, speedy and inexpensive de­

. termination of every action and proceeding. 

In the first case cited by the majority opinion, Locsin vs. 
Paredes nn<l Hodges, 63 Phil. 87, the decision of the trial court 
omitted the word ,.severally", and yet when this Tribunal found 
out even after said decision had become final, that the obligation 
was not only joint but several, we ignored the omission and al­
lcwed the trial court to cure it by considering that the omitted 
word "severally" was actually contained in the decision. Although 
the decision in that case was already final, still we virtually mo­
dified it by practically allowing the insertion of the word "se­
verally", whic:h word was not there in the first place, in order 
to make the decision conform to the merits of the case, although 
we said that it was to elarify the ambiguity in the dispositive 
part. 'Vhy could not we in the present case cure the error or 
omission committed by inserting as it were the phrase, "with in­
terest at the legal rate from the filing of the action", knowing 
that the respondents are fully entitled to said legal interest and 
the petitionel's liable to pay it on the basis of the final decision 
being enforced. That would clear the ambiguity. But the nia­
JC.rity opinion says that there is no ambiguity in the present case. 
I believe there is, because whereas the dispositive part makes 
nc. mention of the payment of interest, the decision sought to 
be enforced provides for said payment of interest, and the very 
body of the present decision r efers io said payment of interest 
and in effect grants and approves its enforcement. 

Again, in the case of Velez vs. Martinez and Chacon, 63 Phil. 
~81 , cited and discussed in the majority opinion, the trial court 
in its decision sought to hold the defendant personally respon­
sible for the payment of a ce.rtein amount with interest. In order 
tG correct the encr and administer justice, we had to examine 
the record of the ease and when we found that the defendant 
was sued not in his personal capacity but as administrator, we 
held that the trial court could not h~Icl him per sonally responsi­
ble but only as an administrator. In other words, t:o administer 
justice in that case, we went through and beyond, even ignored 
the dispositive part of a trial court's final decision and after 
e:-;amining the record, we in effect modified the dispositive part 
of said final deci~ion so as to conform to the record and the 
merits of the ease. 

I agree with the majority that ordinarily, the judgment in 
n case contained in the dispositive part should be respected and 
followed, specially when it has become final, but when, as in the 
present case, there is a manifest error or omission which sub-
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stantially affect the right;; of one of the parties, and the trial 
court which had committed that error itself is disposed and wants 
t <i correct its error or omission, we should disi·egard technical­
ities and allow t he trial court lQ correct its own error. In try. 
ing to do so, the trial court in its order of January 15, 1958, said: 

''Although the dispositive part of the decision does not 
order the defendants to pay interest on the sum of P9,218.0D, 
nevertheless, in paragraph 1 of the decision it clearly ap­
pears that the defendants were ordered to pay legal interest 
on the said sum. Por this reason, the motion to set aside 
the order of this court of December 14, Hl57 orderinr. pay-
ment of said interest is denied." 

However, we through the majority opinion decline and refuse 
to allow said trial cour t to make correction of its involuntary 
error. And to my mind, t here lies the whole trouble, nay, the 
tragedy of the whole unfortunate s itu ation. 

Another point of view suggests itself. As already stated, the 
present actiOn was brought merely to enforce the first or final 
decision which called for the piiyment of P9,218.00 and the pay-
1ne11t of legal 1~nl'.; rest. Since the present decision authorizes said 
enforcement, may it or can it in the process of enforcement mo­
dify the final decision to be enforced by increasing oi: diminish­
ing the amount or omitting the payment of legal interest? I do 
not .believe so. It must enfo t'ce the final decision if it at all, faithfully, 
fully and in its entirety. It cannot enforce the payment of the 
amount and leave the payment of legal interest for another · ac­
tion for enforcement. Jn other words, a final decision may not 
be enforced by means of or through a. subsequent decision, piece· 
meal. Otherwise, that would mean multiplicity of suits because 
the winning party would have to bring another action to enforce 
that part of the deeision regarding payment of the interest which 
was involuntarily omitted in the enforcing decision. This, in my 
opinion, is another reason why the dispositive part of the pre­
sent decision should be clarified and made to conform to the 
body of the decision and the record of the case by considering 
as included in said dispositive part, the payment of legal interest. 

The amount i1wolved in the legal interest is quite substan­
tial. It is interest at the legal rate from November 9, 1953 on 
the rather considerable amount of P9,218.00. The respondents who 
were adjudged by final decision liable for said amount and in­
terest have delayed the said payment and even had taken the 
C'ase on appeal to the Court of Appeals, which court declared 
the appeal to be frivolous and condemned them to pay double 
costs. By the time this decision becomes final, almost seven years 
will have passed from November 9, 1953. The interest on P9,218.00 
for that period at the legal interest would be quite substantial 
and with the majority opinion, we -shall be depriving respondents 
of that, in my opinion, unjustly, merely on technical grounds. 

In conclusion, I hold that an err'Jr committed through over­
sight in the dispositive part of a decision may be corrected even 
if the latter has become final, in order to conform to the body 
of the decision, this, in order to serve the interests of justice; 
that where as in the present case, the error was really uninten­
tional because the body of the decision as to the amount of the 
judgment and the payment of legal intere.st, is clear, and the 
trial court that committed the error realizes it and to make amends, 
w~nts to correct the error, it should be allowed to do so by this 
Tribunal; that where as in the present case, the decision in ques· 
tion and the dispositive pa_rt thereof merely seek to enforce a 
prior final judgment, said final decision must stand in its en­
tirety and integrity without any all<?ration, amendment, increase 
or diminution of the amount involved including the payment of 
interest, and the decision enforcing the same must enforce it 
fully, in its entirety, and it may not intentionally or otherwis2, 
modify, alt.er, diminish or increase the amount of the judgment. 
Neither may it enforce the prior judgment only partial\y or piece­
meal so as to leave the enforcement of the rest of the judgment 
t1.> a subsequent action for that would mean multiplicity of sui ts. 

For the foregoing reasons, I dissent. 

/stan:Wrd-Vacnnm Oil Co., ~titionc t , v11 . Anita Ta11 and The 
Com·ti of Appeals, Rc.~pondents, G. R. No. D-13048, Feb. 27, 1960, 
Gutierrez David, J . 
CIVIL LAW; ARTICLES 1902· AND 190.3 OF OLD CI VI L CODE 

CONSTRUED. - The liability of the employer under arti· 
cles 1902 and 1903 of the old Civil Code is primary and 
direct, based upon his own negligence (culpa aquiliana) and 
not on that of his employees <1r servants. 
Ross, Selp, Carra.scosa & Janda, for petitioner. 
Alberto R. de Joya, for respondent. 

DECISION 

On May 3, 1949, Julito St&. Domingo and lgmidio Rico, em­
ployees of the Standard Vacuum Oil Company (hereinafter re· 
ferred to as STANVAC), were delivering gasoline from a tank 
truck trailer to the Rural Transit Co. at its garngc at Rizal 
Avenue Extension, City of Manila. While the gasoline was be­
ing discharged to a subterranean tank, the discharge hose sud­
denly caught fire. It .spread to the rear part of the tank truck, 
and as somebody shouted , "Fire! fire!'' Sto. Domingo, who w:1s 
then bu sy writing his report inside the cab of the truck, went 
down to investigate. He · saw that his helper, Rico, had already 
removed the hose and closed the cap screw of the tank. Obeying 
l he signal of Rico, who sustained burns on his face, Sto. Domin­
go drove out the truck from the gasoline section compound to­
wards Rizal A venue Extension. But upon reaching the street, 
he abandoned the truck without setting its parking brake. Con­
sequently, the vehicle continued moving to the opposite side of 
the street causing three houses on that side - one of them belong­
ing to Anita Tan - to be burned and destroyed. 

Juiifo Sto. Domingo and l gmidio Rico wc•re subsequently 
chal'ged with arson through reckless imprudence in the Court of 
First Instance of Manila. Both were, however, acquitted after 
due trial because their negligence was proven and nobody 
knew what caused or started the fire, it being "an unfortunate 
2cc:ident." 

Anita Tan then filed a complaint in the Court of First In s­
tance of Manila against STANVAC, Julito Sto. Domingo and 
Ig midio Rico, seek ing to recover the sum of Pl2,000. 00 which 
was the cost of the construction and repair of her house, plus 
legal interests. This complaint was later amended to ask for 
11.ctual and moral damages and to include as defendant the Rural 
Transit Company . Upon defendants' motion, the complai nt was 
dismissed. But on appeal, the order of dismissal was affirmed 
b:r this Court only with respect to defendants Sto. Domingo and 
Rico, and reversed with regard to the other two defendants. 
{Anita Tan vs. Standard Vacuum Oil Co. et a!., G.R. No. L-
4160, July 29, 1951.) 

In the court a quo after the case had been remanded, the 
complaint was finally amended to include additional party de­
fendants and to substitute the name of Rural T ransit Co. 'vith 
Eachrach Motor Co .. Inc., it having been found that the former 
was but a garage and gasoline station owned and operat ed by the 
latter. 

After the issues had been joined and several hearings held, 
the trial court rendered judgment, thi? dispositive part of which 
re.ads: 

"IN VIEW OF ALL THE FOREGO I NG CONSIDERA­
TIONS, an alternative and conditional judgment is hereby 
l'endered as follows: 

"I. Under the first cause of action for culpa aqniliana, 
the defendants Standard Vacuum Oil Company and the Bach· 
rach Motor Company are hereby ordered to pay the plaintiff, 
jointly and severnlly, (a) the sum of ·vto,630.80 for what 
plaintiff has spent in the reconstruction of her house No. 
2540, Rizal Avenue Extension, this City, with interest there­
on at the rate of 6 % per annum from january 6, 1950, the 
date of the filing of the original complaint in this case; (b) 
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P2/700.00 for rentals which she failed to rec'Clve while. 
said house wss under construction; (c) Pl,000.00 for moral 
damages; (d) fifteen per cent ( 15'/o ) of the amounts men­
tioned in (a). (b) and (c) of this paragrph !or attorney's 
fees; and (d) to pay the costs; 

"2. Under the second C"ause of action and in pursuance 
of the provi sions of Art. 101, 2nd par. of t he Revised Penal 
Code, defendants Pilar T. Bautista, Milagros G. Tinio, and 
the Heirs of the deceased Inocenc io Gochangco, to wit, Se­
verina L. Gochangco, Conrado Gochangco, Segundina Alcazar 
and Noemi G. Palma (these heirs as one), are hereby ordered 
to pay plaintiff the same amounts which appear in No. 1 
of the dispoSitivc part of this decision in proportion to the 
values of their respective properties as above set forth but, 
if this judgment is executed against them and they do pay, 
their payment shall be without prejud ice to seek proportion­
al reimbursement from defendants Gloria Posadas Arkonel 
nad the -Bachrach Motor Co_mpany, whose properties haVe ahm 
been saved from the conflagration; 

"3. Plaintiff shall not be entitled to both of the re· 
medics mt!ntioned in Nos . 1 and 2 hereof, nor can the de­
fendants in either number seek reimbursement from those in 
the other." 

Frcm that judgment, the two defendant companies appealed 
to the Court of Appeals. On September 18, 1957, that court r~nd­
dNed its decision absolving Bachrach Motor Co. Inc., from any 
J!abilitv. but affirming the appealed judgment with respect to 

· STANVAc, with the modification that it shall pay plaintiff Anita 
Tan only the amount of P13,036.00, plus legal interest. 
£TANVAC in due t.ime filed a motion for reconsideration, but th(' 
snme having been denied, it filed the present petition fo r revi ew 
on certiorari. 

The Court of Appeals in the decision complained of expresslr 
found that "the record of the case showing that if the fire th.at. 
~utted the house of Anita Tan was not caused by Sto. Domingo's 
nnd Rico"s criminal .negligence, c\'idently it was so caused by their 
fault and lack of equanimity in the presence of the fire which 
s uddenly and for unknown reason sparked in the diseharge hose 
and which could have been put out by the proper and opportune 
l1sk of the fire extinguishers with which the tank-trailer was 
equipped." It also found that there was negligence on the part 
of the employer, herein petitioner STANVAC itself, in the di­
rection or supervi sion of its two employees. To better show the 
acts or omissions constituting the fault or negligence of peti­
t.ioncr and its two employees, the pertinent portion of the de::i­
sion of the Court of Appeals is hereunder quoted as follow s : 

"It is admitted thnt the Rural Transit Station had n 

shaded portion and' an open cemented space. The main opening 
ot its subterranean tank was n~arer the shaded part than 
Rizal Avenue Exte'nsion. It is presumed that during the d; :;: 
cha1·ge operation the tank-trailer was parked in the middle 
of the open space which had an area of 65 f eet (Exh. 'Q'). 
Hence, had the tank-trailer truck been left in t.hat open sapce, 
appel!ee's hou se would not have been burned nor would an 
explosion of the underground tank have occurred because, 
according to Sto. Domingo himself, when he drove the truck 
out of the street, Rico had already removed the hose from 
the opening of said tank and closed it with the cap screw 
(t.s.n., p. 100 Santiago) This conclusion is fully sustained 
by then Acting Deputy Chief of the Manila Fire Department , 
Bi aulio Alofla who, when asked if the subterranean tank 
would have exploded had not the tank-trailer been removed 
from the place where it caught fire, categorically answered, 
"No, Scfior, no explotaria.' (t.s.n., p. 9 - Quimpo.) 

"It is likewi se admitted that the two fire extinguishers 
which the tank.trailer carried (appellant's brief, p . 24) were 
not det ached and put to use by Sto. Domingo and Rico. In­
stead in open violation of condition No. 8 of the Permit for 

the Transportation of Combustible by Tank Truck (Exh. 
'X-2') - which provides that 'whenever refilling or filling 
work is conducted, fire e~tingu~she1: m1_;1st be on hand and 
readied for fi re emergency by an ~xperienced operator until 
the fill or discharge operation is completed' -Sto. Domingo 
went into the c:ab of the truck to write his report while Rico 
watch with empty hands t he unloading of the gasoline. 
Had both employees of the appellant oil company complied 
with t he condit ion j ust ·quoted by closely observing the dis­
charge operation with the fire extinquishers in their hands 
ready for use, they could have used these instruments ins­
tantly and would certainly have been able to put out the 
spark that ignited the hose dm;ng the discharge opnation -
just as the foreman of t he Rural Transit Station succeeded 
in putting out the :fire at the mouth of t he underground 
tank by the proper usage of the station's only extingu isher. 

"The above transcribed condition speaks of an 'experienced 
operator' who must use and operate the fire extinguisher. 
Yet, Sto. Domingo, who, according to appellant's evidence had 
some training and took periodic refresher course on the pro­
per way of making delivery of its highly inflamable pro· 
ducts by means of tank-trailer , including the use and ope­
ration of the fire cxlinguisher, did not personally attend to 
the d ischarge of t he gasoline but entrusted this very deli­
cate and most risky task to Igmidio Rico, who had no trai,ning 
at all - or if he had some, it was not proven during the 
trial. 

"While the dischharge of the gasoline to the underground_ 
tank vias undertaken, there were many persons waiting for 
the passenger truck 'about two er three meters' from the 
tank-trailer truck, milling about it (t .s.n., pp. 9 and 10 -
Garcia) Even Sto. Domingo admitted that when he stop­
ped writing and turned around because of the shout of 'fire' 
fire! he saw a woman at the left side of his trut=k who 
run towards a bus inside the Rural Tra nsit garage (Exh. 
;N-2'). It was indeed lack of foresight, bordering on c:ul­
pable negligence, on the part of Sto. Domingo and Rico to 
have allowed many perso11s to roam around near t he tank ­
trailer while the discharge of the gasoline was under way, 
considering the high volatility and inflammability of t h is li­
quid. 

"Sixta Lazaro, who lived directly across the street from 
the Rural Transit Station, declared: 'On May 3 1949, bet 
ween 3 and 3 :Zd o'clock in the afternoon I was picking 
clothes stretched under the sun and I heard somebody shout­
ing ';sunog, sunog" "(fire, fire"). When I turned my head 
to look at the direction from which the shout t'ame, I saw 
inside the garage of the Rural Trnnsit Company a green 
trnck di scharging gasoline, with the rear part already aflame. 
I went to our bathroom to see .better what was happening. I 
saw the driver started the truck perhaps to drive it out 
from the premi ses but before the truck reached the street 
the driver jumped out from his seat. I saw the truck 
coming right to the direction of our house so I picked up my 
boy about two years old and I went downstairs. ' Ve have 
just reached downstairs when I heard the truck was jummed 
at the d itch infront of our house.' (t.s.n., pp. 21 and 22, 
Garcia). According: to this witness, after the driver jumT>Cd 
out. 'the truck continued in motion' ( t.s.n., p. 26 - Garcia )' 
and the flame at the rear part of the truck was still 'about 
one foot high from the bottom of the tank' (t.s.n . , p. 28 -
Garcia) in a place marked as circle 1 in Exhibit 'D'. Evi­
dently, Sto Domingo was seized with panic and abandoned 
the truck without sett.i11g its parking brake and without using 
the fire extinquisher which was 'placed · on the usual place 
on the side of the truck ' (t.s.n., p. 25 - Garcia). Had he 
stopped the truck on the western side of Riz:li A yenue Ex­
tension and operated the fire extinguishet instead of running 
away from the scene of occurrence, most probably he could 
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rear part of the tank-trailer '\\.&S only about one foot high. 

"The facts narrated in the five preceding paragraphs 
prove that the employees of appellant oil company did not 
exercise special care and diligence required by the exceptional 
character of the work they were undertaking on May 3, 1949, 
in the ccurse of their employment in the service of appel-
!ant oil company. 

"Another equally unmcritoiious contention of appellant 
oil company is that the trial court erred in holding that thi;1 
appellant was negligent in not having appropriately instructed 
its employees. 

"It is of • c01nmo11 knowledge that gasoline is a highly 
volatile and combustible liquid. For this reason, aside from 
the requirements that tank-trailers should have drag chains 
or other flexible metallic devices long enough to reach thil 
ground; that it should use only ek-cti-ic lights with fuses or 
automatic circ:,uit breakers: . that smoking is absolutely pro­
hibited during deliveries or when the tank is being filled: 
and others (Exh. 'N-2'), the owne1·s or !::ellers of sa id li­
quid must pt'operly instruct their laborers and rcmployecs 
charged with the delivery or handling of the liquid on how 
to manipulate the fire extinguishers so that they may ins­
tantly put out any spark. They should likewise be given 
the location of the nearest fire nlnrm for immediate notifi­
cation of the fire dc11artment if the spark assumes pro.por­
tions greater t han can he extinguished by the small hand 
apparatus. It has not been shown that lgmidio Rioo re­
ceived any such in.~truction or training from appellant: and 
Julito Sto. Domingo, who undersent some trnining, te :o t ifi ed 
that during his training period and three years of service, 
he was not instructed on the usage and shown the locations 
of the fire alarms in the vicinity of the stations where he 
used to deliver gasoline, neither was he given by appellant 
any sketch or map to show the locu.tions of said fire alurtns 
(t.s.n., pp . 31 and 32 - Boaqiiia). Thus, he was not 
able to locate any fire alarn1 during his ten-minute laborious 
search. Had an early warning Crum Sto. Domingo been r e· 
ceived by the fire department, the destruction of appcllee's 
house might have been prevented by the prompt action of 
the firemen. 

"On the other hand, appellant oil compm1y knew of the 
practice of Sto. Domingo of writing his reports in the cb.b 
of the truck dul"ing discharge operations, and yet appelbnt 
oil company did not advise him against it nor prnhibit him 
from doing it (t.s.n., pp. 60, 63 and G4 - Santiago). Had 
appellant ordered Sto. Domi ngo to stop this practice and 
instructed him to personally attend to the dischar~ of the 
gasoline with the fire extinguishc!· ready, he would irulubi­
tably have been able to check the fire at its inception, taking 
into acoount his specia l training which Rico did not have. 

"Obviously, those considerations frustrate appell:>.nts's at­
tempt to exculpate itself under the last paragraph of Art­
icle 1903 of the old Civil Code, by trying to futilely pmvc 
that it exercised the diligence of a g ood father of a family 
to prevent the damage to appellee's property." 

Counsel for petitioner STANVAC contends that si-,1ce its 
employees Sto. Domingo and Rico had previously been found by 
competent court to be not negligent - referring to the court ac· 
quitting them in the criminal c:ase for arson thru r eckless im­
prudence - said petitioner cannot now be held liable for da­
mages. The contention, in our opinion, cannot be sustained. l t 
is admitted that respondent Anita Tan sought to hold STANVA C 
liable under Articles 1902 and 1903 of the old Civil Code. the law 
i11 force at the time the fire in question occ urred. Under those 
articles, the liability of the employer is primary and di rect, based 
upon ,his own negligence (culpa aqui!iana) and not on that of 
liis employees or servants. (Ca·ngco vs. Manila Railroad Co., 38 
Phil. 768.) The present prooeeding, therefore, is entirely un· 

related to the judgment in lhc criminal case where petitioner's 
two employees were acquitred because their criminal negligence 
was not proved and the i.:ause of the fire could not be detNmined. 
Parenthetically, after the trial court had ordered the 
di smissal of respondent Anita Tan's complaint, this Court on 
1111peal reversed that order as to STANVAC and authorized the 
proceedings against said company, which was sued ''not precisely 
because of the negligent aets of its two employees but because 
of acts of its own which might have· contributed to the fire that 
destroyed the house of plaintiff (herein respondent Anita Tan)." 
Continuing, this CoUJ t further observed that -

"x x x The complaint contains dt>finite allegations of 
negligent acts properly nttributable to the company which if 
proven an.d not refuted may serve as basiR of its civil lia­
bility. Thus, in paragraph 5 of the first cause of action, 
it is expressly alleged that this company, through its employe(!"S, 
failed to take the. necessary preo:rnt:ons or measures to in­
sure safety and avoid harm to persons and do.mage to pro­
perty as well as to observe that decree of care, precaution 
a nd vigilance which the circumstances justly demanded, there­
by causing the gu1oline they were unloading to catch fire. 
The precautions or measures which this company has al­
legedly failed to take to prevent fire arc not clearly stated, 
but they are matters of evidence which need not now be 
determined. Suffice it to say that such allegation furnishes 
enough basis for a cause of action against this company· 
x x x." 

Taking great pains in minutely scrutini7.ing the allegations 
in the complaint <!Junsel for petitioners avers that STANVAC was 
merely referred to herein as the employer and was not at all 
char"cd with negligenc'-0. Be that as it may, it is undisputed 
that '"' no objection was made to the presentation of evidence as 
to the negligence acts of STANVAC during the trial of the case. 
As a matter of fact, it even tried to overcome that evidence of 
its own tending to show that it had employed the diligence of 
a good father of a family to prevent the damage. The issue, 
therefore, regs1:ding the negligence of petitioner ST AN~ AC -
even assuming that the complaint does not really contam all~ 
vations of negligent acts properly attributable to it - must 
b~ considered as it if had been raised in the pleadings. And the 
CoUJt of Appeals, whose factua l findings are final and ~onc!~­
si ve upon this Court, having found that petitioner com~auy did fail 
to take necesary precautions or measures t o prevent fi re, and that 
the fire that destroyed respondent Anita Tan's house could have been 
avoided had petitioner exercised due care in the supervision or 
control of its employees, the appellate court's rullfog on ?ts 
liability cannot now be distu!'bed . 

In view of the foregoing, the decision sought to be reviewed 
is hereby affirmed, with costs against petitioner. 

Paras, C. J ., llen9zon, Montemayor, D.aiitista A ngelo, Labra· 
dor, Co11eepe·fo11, J. B. L. Reyes, E1ulenefo an<l Barrera, JJ., con-

'"Z, l'<epl< of "" Philippi::., Plah•"lf-Appdl", '"· v,,,,,,,_ 
v cnt.iira Buli11g, Dcfe11dant-Appllant, G. R. No. L-13315, Apr-1l 27, 
1960, Lab1·ador, J. 

1. CRIM INAL PROCEDURE; DOUBLE JEOPARDY; CASE 
AT BAR. - On December 7, 1956, defendant was charged in 
the justice of the peace court with Jess sel"ious physical in· 
juries, the complaint alleging that the injuries of the offended 
party would require medical attendance and incapacitate him 
from 10 to 15 days. AccusC'd pleadi?d guilty and served 
fully the sentence. The injuries did not hc:tl within the said 
p<'riod, so the Provincial F isca l filed a Se<'ond infMmation 
against the defendant for seriou s physical injuries with the 
Court cf First Instance, alleging that the injuries would re­
quire medical attendance and incapzcitate the offended pa1ty 
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have checked the fire and prevented the burning of appei­
lce's house, because even at that moment the fire in th" 
from 1-1 / 2 months to 2-1 /~ months. Defendant having been 
convicted of serious physical injuries, appealed, I ssue: 
·whether tho prosecution and oonviction of defendan t for 
less serious physical injuries is a bar to the necond pro­
secution for serious physical injuries. Held: Sin=e no new 
supervening fact has existed or cccurrcd which has trans 
formed the offense from Jess serious physical injuries, the 
prose(<l1tion and conviction of defendant for Jess serious phy­
sical injuries is a bar to the second prosecution for serious 
physical injuries. 

2. ID. ; ID.; ID. _.:._ In the case at ba r, the new .findi ng of fracture 
which lengthened the period of healing of the wound was duo 
to the very superficial and inco;ic!usive examination made on 
December IO, 1956. Had an x.ray examination taken at the 
time, the - fracture would have certainly been di sclosed. The 
wound causing the dC'luy in .healing was already in ex i s ten~ 

at the time of the fi rst examination, hut said delay was caused 
by the '·cry superficial examination then made. No super­
vening fact had occurred and, therefore, the general ru le on 
double jeopa rdy should be applied. 
Francisco A. P 1n·ay, for defendant-appellant. 
Asst. Sol. Generu.l E 8mcraldo Umllli and Sol. Emerito M. Sall:11, 

for plaintiff-appellec. 

DECISION 

. Appeal from a judgment of the Court of First In stance o( 
Leyte, Hon. Gaudenclo Gloribel, prcsid ing, finding the accused 
Buenaventura Buling guilty of serious physical injuries and sen­
tencing him to imprisonment of four months of arresto mayor, a s 
niinimum, to one year of prison correccional, a s maximum, to 
indemnify the offended party. 

The following uncontroverted facts appear in the record : 0:1 
December 7, 1956, the accused was cha rged in the Justice of the 
Peace Court of Cabalian , Leyte, with the crime of less serious 
ph1•sical injuries for · having inflicted wounds on complain.ing wit­
ness Isid ro Balaba, which accordirig to the complaint would require 
medical attendance for a period from 10 to 15 days and will in­
capacitate the said Isidro Balaba from the performance of hi s 
customary labors for the same per iod of time." The accused plea­
ded guilty to the complaint and was on December 8, 1957 found 
guilty of the crime charged and sentenced to I month and 1 day 
cf arresto mayor and to pay damages to the offended party in the 
r.u m of P20.00, with subsidiary imprisonment in case of in soh·cnCJ-. 
On the same day he bei:ran to serve l:is sentence and has fully 
served the same. 

However, Bahiba's injm·ics did not heal within the pci·iod 
estimated, and so on February 20, 1957, the Provincial Fi scal 
fiied an information against the accused before the Court of First 
Instance of Leytc, charging him of serious physical inju ries. 
'!'he information alleges that the woun<is inflicted by the accused 
on Isidro Balaba require medical attendance and inca pacitated 
him for a period of 1-/ 12 months to 2-1/ 2 months . After trial the 
accused was found gui lty of serious physical injuries and sent­
enced in the manner indicated in the first paragl'aph hereof. This 
is the deci sion now sought to be set aside and reversed in this 
appeal. 

The only question for resolution by this Cou rt is, whether 
the prosecution and conviction of Balaba for less serious phy­
s ical injuries is a bar to the second prosecution for serious phy­
sical injuries. 

Two conflicting doctrine on double jeopardy have been enun­
ciated by this Court. one in thP. case of People Tarok, 73 Phil . 260 
and People vs. Villasis, 81 Phil. 881, and the other, ln the cases 
of Melo vs. People, 85 Phil. 76G, People vs. M:anolong, 85, Phil. 
829 and People vs. Pct.illa, L-5070, prom. December 29, 1952 . 
But in Melo vs. People, supra, we expressly repealed our ruling 
in the case of People vs. Tarok, suvra, and followed in the case 

of People vs. Villasis, supra. In the Melo vs. People case, we 
stated the ruling to be that: 

''x x x Stating it in another form, the rule is that "where 
after the first prosecution a new fact supervenes for which 
the defendant is responsible, which changes the character of 
the offense and, together with the facts existing at the time, 
constitutes a new and di stinct offense" (15 Am. Jur, 66), 
the accused cannot be said to be in second jeopardy if indict­
ed for the new offense." (85 Philippine Reports, pp: 769. 
770). 
Do the facts in the ease at bar justify the application of the 

new ruling? In other words, has a new fact supervened, like 
cieath in the case of Melo vs. People, which changes the charac­
ter of the offense into one which was not in existence at the 
time the case for less serious physical injuries was filed? We 
<lo not believe that a new fact supervened, or that a new fact has 
come into existence. What happened is that the first physician 
that examined the wounds of the offended party certified on 
December 10, 1956 that the injury was as follows: "wound, in­
ciised, Wl'ist, latera l, 1;ght, 3/4 inch long, sutured" and that 
the same would take from 10- to 15 days to heal and incapacitated 
(t.11e wounded man) for the same period of time from his usual 
wurk (Exh. 3). It was ~n the basis of this certificate that on 
December 8, 1956, defendant-appellant was found guilty of less 
scl'ious physical injuries and sentenced to impri sonment o.,f 1 
month and 1 day of arrcsto ma11or, etc. 

But on January 18, 1957, another physician examined th<' 
offended party, taking an X-ray picture of the arm of the offend­
ed party which had been wounded. The examination discloses, 
nccording to the physician, the following injuries : 

"Old stab wound 4 inches long. With infection, di stal 
end nrms, right. X-ray plate finding after one month and 
12 days - Fracture old oblique, incomplete distal end, radiu.:i 
right, with slight calus." (Exh. "E"). 

nnd the certification is to the effect that treatment will take from 
J-1/2 months to 2-1/ 2 months barring complications. 

Counsel for the appellant claims that no faC'.t had supe rvened 
in the case at bar, as a result of which another offense had been 
committed. It is argued that the injury and the condition there· 
of was the same when the first examination was made on Decem­
ber 10, 1956, as when the examination was made on January 
18, 1957, and that if any new fact had been disclosed in the latter 
examination failure of this new fact to be disclosed in the pre­
vious examination may be attributed tc; the incompetence on the 
pi-:rt of the examining physician. We find much reason in this 
argument. What happened is no X-ray examination of the wound­
ed hand was made during the first cx ~1mination, which was merely 
s1:perficial. The physician who made the first examination could 
not have seen the fracture at the distal end of the right arm, 
~nd this could only be apparent or vi sible by X-ray photography. 

Under the ci~umstances above in<licated, we are inclined to 
P.gree with the contention made on behalf of appellant that no 
n£w su pervening fact has existed or occurred, which has trans­
formed the offense from less· ser ious physical injudes to serious 
physical in juries. 

But the Solicitor General cites the ca se of People vs. i\Iano.. 
long, supra, and argues that om· ruling in said case should apply 
to the case at bar, for the reason that in the said case the first 
crime with which the accused was charged was Je;s serious phy­
sical injuries and the second one was serious physical injuries 
arid yet we held that there was no jeopardy. We have carefully 
examined this case and have found that the first examination 
mnde of the offended party showed injuries which would take 
from 20 to 30 days to heal, whereas the subsequent examination 
disclosed that the wound of the offended party would require me­
dical attendance and incapacitate him for labor for a period of 90 
days, "causing deformity and the Joss of the u~e of said member". 
No finding was made in the first examination that the injuries 
had caused deformity and the Joss of the use of the l;ght hand. 
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As nothing wns mentioned in the firsL medical certiflc'ate .about DE C I S I 0 N 
the deformity and the Joss of the- use of the right hand, we pre· Aituro Samonte has interposed this appeal froin the deci sion 
s1.1 me that such fuct was not apparent or could not have been of the Court of First Instance of Bulacan (in Civil Case No. 
ciisccrnible at the time the first examination was made. The 1424), directing him to reconvey, under the terms of Article 
course (not the length) of the healing of an injury may not btl 1088 of the new Civil Code, certain property and pay attorney's 
determined before hand; it can only be definitely known after the fees to plaintiff.appcllee Val1::ntin Castillo. 

i:-ericd of healing ha s ended. That is the reason why the court Defendant spccificaliy took this nppeal directl.v to this Cou r t 
rnnsidered that there was a supervening fact occurring since the stating in his notice of appeal and piayer for approval of the 
filing of the original information· record on appeal that "esta apelacion envuelve tan solantente 

But such circumstances do not exi st in the case at bar. If cuestion de derecho". I n view thereof, he is bound by the 
the x.ray examination discloses the existence of 11 fracture on findings of fact of the court a quo, and this court wi\l, therefore, 
Jirnuary 17, 1957, that fracture must have existed when the first <lecide this appeal purely on the question of Jaw raiscd.( 1) 

uamination wa~ made on December 10 1956 . There is, there- The facts, as found by the trial court, arc th'"at Romualda 
fore, no new or supervening fact that could be said to have de· Meneses was, during her lifetime, the owner of the unregistered 
v~loped or arisen since the filing of the original action, which land in question located at Bambang, Bulacan, Bu1acan, with an 
\1ould justify the application of the ruling enunciated by us in approximate area of 394 square meters. Upon her demise, she 
the cases of Melo vs. People and People vs. Mano\ong, supm. left as compulsor y heirs the plaintiff herei11 and his brothers and 
We attribuie the new finding of fracture, whieh evidently !eng'lh· sisters Gregorio, Amando, Jose, and Melencia, (2) all surnamed 
cned the period of healing or' the wound, to the very superficfol Castillo. Said property i·emaincd undivided as the hei rs did not 
and inconclusive examination made on Decembet· 10, 1956. Had partition the inherited estate either judicially or extra-judicially. 
r. n X-ray examination taken at the time, the fracture would have On July 13, 1953, one of the heirs, Gl'egorio Castillo, without 
Ct'rtainly been disclosed. The wound causing the delay in heal- g; ving any notice in Y•·rit ing to his co.heirs, including plaintiff 
ing was already in existence at the time of the fii·st examination, herein, sold for rt,000 .00 hi s undivided interest in the property 
but said delay was caused by the very superficial examination lo defendant who, on July 16, 1953, succeeded in registering the 
then made. As we have s tated, we find therefore that no super- <leed of sale ( Exh. 2) with the Register of Deeds of Bulacan. 
rnning fact had occurred which justifies the application of the · 
rule in the case of Melo vs. People and People vs. Manolong, 
for which reason we are constrained to apply the general rule 
of double jeopardy. 

We lake this opportunity to invite the attention of the pro­
secuting officers that before filing informations for physical in­
juries, thorough physical and medical examinations of the injuries 
should first be made to avoid instances, like the present, where 
by reason of the important Constitutional provision of double jeo­
pardy, the aocused can not be held to answer !or t he graver' of­
fense committed. 

The decision °appealed from is hereby reversed. The judg· 
ment of conviction is set aside and the defendant.appellant 
CJl.;itted of the charge of 1<erious physical injmies. 

Without costs. 

Para.t: , C.J., Ben9zo11., Montemayor, Ba"tista A nye/o, Concep­
cion, Endenci«, Ba-rrera ar.d GuCier1"c:: David, JJ., concuned. 

I VII 

Vale11tin Castillo, Pwi:J'ti/f·Ap1>ellee, v.s. Artnro Samonte, De· 
/e1ulant-Ap7Jcllant, G. R. N). L-13146, Jrm. 30, 1960, Barrera, J. 

1. CIVIL LAW; ARTlCLE 1088 NEW CIVIL CODE CONS­
TRUED. - Reimb .. :--acment to the purchaser within the 
t:ieriod of one month from the notice in writing a s provided 
for in Article 1088 <J! the New Civil Code is a requisite or 
condition precedent to the exereise of the right of legal re­
demption. The Lrlr.ging of an action in court is the remedy 
to enforce that r.gh~ in case the purchaser refuses the re· 
demption. 

2·. ID.; RIGHT 01' LEGAL REDEMPTION; WHEN IT MAY 
BE EXERCISED . - The right of legal redemption must 
be done within tf," one-month period whereas the bringing 
of an act ion in court to enforce said right must be done 
within the prescri11~\·a period provided in the Statute of 
Limitations. A rede1e1ptioner who has offered to redeem the 
property within the isl'-day period fixed by Article 1088 of 
the new Civil Code ma7 thereafter bring an action to en­
force the redemption, Wt if the said period is allowed to 
elapse before the right •~ availed of, the action to enforce 
the redemption will not prosper, even if brought within the 
ordinary prescriptive period. 

Sometime in September, 1956, when the place was surveyed ca­
dastrally, plaintiff learned for the first time about the -sale and 
forthwith (on September 15, 1956), he offered to redeem the 
property from defendant, but the latter refused to re.sell the 
same to him. Plaintiff, therefore, on December 19, 1956, filed 
a complaint in the above.mentioned court praying that defendant 
be ordered to re-sell the property to him. 

On September 6, 1957, the court rendcl'ed a decision, the 
di spositive part of whi ch rea.ds as fol!ows: 

"FOR A LL THE FOREGO ING CONSIDERATIONS, . 
the Court hereby renders judgment in favor of the plaintiff 
and against the defendant, ordering the latter to reeonvey 
or transfer the portion of the property in question to the 
plaintiff herein, upon the payment by the latter to the for­
mer of the amount of ONE THOUSAND PESOS (l'l,000.00), 
which is the consideration of the sale made by Gregorio 
Castillo in favor of the defendant; to pay the plaintiff the 
amount of TWO HUNDRED PESOS (P200 .00) as attorney's 
fees, and the costs of this action". 
Defendant, in this appeal, claims that the court a quo, erred : 

(1) in not ordering the heir.vendor Gregoi-io Castillo to be in· 
eluded either party plaintiff or party defendant in the case; 
(2) in upholding defendant's right to redeem the propefty sub-. 
ject to the controversy; and (3) in uwarding to plaintiff attor­
ney's fees. 

As to the first assigned error, the trial court had no ob!i. 
gation to order the inclusion of the vendor either as a party 
plaintiff or party defendant in the case, because while he may 
be a nect!ssary party, sti!l he is not indispensable in the sense 
that the matter before it could not be completely adjudicated 
without him . The deed of sale in favor of appellant clearly 
states tha t what is being sold is an undivided 1/ 5 portion of the 
land jointly owned by the vendor and his brothers and nephew. 
The vendee·appellant is, therefore, conclusively presumed to know 
the law that under such circumstances, the co.heirs are entitled 
to redeem the portion being sold within 30 days from notice in 
writing of the sale, under Article 1088 of the New Civil Code. 
In effect, he is a vcndee with notice of the right of redemption 
by the vendor's co.heirs. 

( 1) Sec. 3, Rule 42, Rules of Cou1t; Millar v. Nadres, 74 Phil. 
307. 

( 2) Now deC"Cased and represented by he 0r only son Gregorio 
Asuncion. 
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Moreover, if the vcndee-appellant believed he had a cluim 
against the vendor by r eason of the warranty, it was his duty 
to have filed a third-pa rty complaint against the latter pur· 
suunt to Section 1, Rule 12, of the Rules of Court, which states: 

"SECTION 1. Claim agains t one noD a pa1·ty to an 
tteli<m. - ·when a defendant claims to be entitled against a 

')_)erson not a party to the action, hereinafter called the third­
)Jarty defendant, to contribution, indemnity, subrogation or 
any other relief, in respect of the plaintiff's claim, he may 
file, with leave of court, against such person a pleading 
which shall state the nature of his claim and shall be ca!led 
the third-pa1iy complaint." 

ln re~pect q,f the second a ss igned error, Article 1088 of the 
Civil Code, pro\·ides: 

"ART. 1088. Should any o f the heirs sell his heridi­
tary rights to a stranger before the partition, any or all 
the co-heirs may be subrogated to the rights of the pur­
chaser by r ei mbursing him for the price of the sale, pfovided 
they do w withi11 the period of c.ne montli f1·01n i'he tim .. ~ 
lhey were nol'ified in writi11g of tlt e sale by the vendor." 
(Emphasis supplied.) 

Frnm the facts found by the trial court, it is indisputable 
that plaintiff is entitled to redeem the hereditary right over 
the 1/ 5 undivided share sold by his brother Gregorio Castillo to 
herein tlefenda11t-appellant. The only remaining question is whe­
ther plaintiff exercised his right within the period prescribed in 
the law. 

It is admitted that p laintiff, as ro-heir, has never been no­
tifieJ in 11Jl'iting of the sale made .by his brother, Gregorio Cas­
tillo. Nor wei·e the other co-heirs. But defendant-appellant 
argues that the registration of the deed of sale (Exh. 2) on July 
16, 1953, with the Register of Deeds of Bulacan, was sufficient 
notice of the sale under the provisions of Section 51 of Act No. 
49G (Land Registration Act), which reads: 

"SEC. 51. Every conveyance, mortgage, lease, lien, 
attachment, or(jer, decree, instrnment, or entry affecting rc­
gisrci·cd laud which would under existing laws, if recorded, 
fill'd or entered in the office of the register of deeds, affect 
the real estate to which it relates shall, if registered, filed, 
or entered in the office of the register of deed s in the pro­
\•ince or city where the real estate to which such instrument 
relates lies, be notice to all persons f ;·om the time such re­
gistering, filing or entering ." (Emphasis supplied.) 

But the above-quoted provision of the statute applies only to 
1"cgiste1·c<l lan<l.s, and has no application. whatsoever to the instant 
c~sc, for the reason that the property herein involved is, ad­
mittedly, unregistered land.( l ) In this connection, the court a 
11 1.1.0 correctly observed that "Both the letter and spirit of the 
New Civil Code argue ,against any attempt to widen the scope of 
the notice specified in Article 1088 by including therein any 
other kind of notice, such as verbal or by registration. If the 
intention of the law had been to include verbal notice or anv 
other means of information as sufficient to give the effect of 
this notice, then there would haVe been no necessity or reason 
to specify in Article 1088 of the New Civil Code that the said 
notice or information was sufficient. (1) 

It is nevertheless urged by appellant that since appel!ee 
admits having learned about the sale in September, 1956, and 
fikd his complaint only in December of the same year, or after 
a lapse of three months, his action has already prescribed, arguing 
that aetual knowledge constitutes and supplies the written notice 
required by Al'ticle 1088 of the new Civil Code. In the view 

. ( 3 ) There is no registration of title to speak of relative to Such 
;;~~)of lands. (Ventura, Land Titles and Deeds (4th Ed.] 

( 4 ) Art . 1067, old Civil Code; Hernaez v. Hernaez, 32 Phil. 
214, 

\ve take in this case, we ne:ed not now' decide whether actual 
knowledge will dispense with the notice in writing mentioned in 
the law. Suffice it to note that herein appellee, upon learning 
of the sale in September, 1956, within 30 days thereafter (spe­
cifically on the 15th of the same month), offered to repurchas('! 
the property from the appellant. This, in our opinion established 
his right to re~eem, and he could bri11g an action in court tr> 
enforce the righ/J of redemp tion at any time th ercaftcl' p1•ovided 
it is not barHd by the Statute of LimiV.itions. 

Interpreting a similar provision in Article 1524( 5) of the old 
Civil Code, this Court held that the same was not a prescriptive 
period, and ·stated: 

·•x x x the right of legal redemption and the right to 
commence actions "are of an entirely different nature. The 
first creates a substantive right which, in the absence of the 
article, would never exist; the second 'Testrfotls the period in 
which a canse of actioli may be asse7ted." (Sempio v. Del 
Rosario, 44 Phil. 1, at 3) 

To the same effect is the case :.if Villasor v. Medel et al. 
(46 Off. Gaz. [Supp. 10] 344, 348) whel'e this Court, speaking 
through Mr. Justice Tuason further stated : 

"x x x An actipn seeks to assert a fundamental, pri­
mary right of v1hich the plaintiff has been unlawfully dep­
rived, or to redress a wrong which has been inflicted; legal 
redemption is in nature of a mere privilege created by law 
partly for reasons of public policy and partly for the ben.e-' 
fit and convenience of the redemptioner, to afford him a 
way out of what might be a disagreeable or inconvenient asso· 
ciation into which he has been thrust. (10 Manrern, 4th ed., 
317)" 

It would seem clear from the uilove that the ?"ei111burs1..numt to 
Ifie purchaser within the period of one 11ionth f'Tom the notice 
1·n writi11g is a requisite or condii!ion precedent to the exercise of 
the right of legal redemption; the b'Tinging of an action in court 
fa th e 'Temedy Co c11force that right in case the purchaser refuses 
t'he redemption. The first must be done within the month-period; 
the second within the prescriptive period provided in the Statute 
of Limitations. If a redemptioner, therefore, has offered Co re­
decin the property within the period fixed, he has complied with 
the condjtion prescribed by the law, and may thereafter bring 
an action to enforce the redemption. If, on the other hand, Vhe 
7>eriod is allowed to lapse bcjore. the. right! is made 1rne of, then 
the act~on to cnfo1·ce the 1·cdemption will 1tot prosper, even if 
b1·oughV within the ordinary prescr-iptivc period.(b) 

Th e case of Asuncion v. Jacob e t al. decided by the Court 
of Appeals (48 Off. Gaz., 2786) and cited by defendant-appel­
la nt is not authority to support his submission that the com­
plaint for redemption must be filed '\ ithin the one month pe­
riod especially where it appeal's that ·such a statement was a 
mere obiter not supported by the finding that the complaint 
in that case was filed after a lapse of fourteen (14) years from 
the time the redemptioner was informed of the sale. 

Regarding the last assigned error, defendant cites as au­
thority the case of Jimenez v. Bucoy (G. R. No. L-10221, prom. 
February 28, 1958). In said case, as in the instant case, the 
fower court awarded attorney·s fees to plaintiff without explain­
ing why it made the award. Disapproving said award, on ap-
peal, we stated as follows: 

"Under the new Civil Code, attorney·s fees and expen­
ses of litigation may be 'awarded in this case if 'defendant 
acted in gl'oss and evident bad faith in refusing to satisfy 
plaintiff's plainly valid, just and demandable claim' or 'where 
the court deems it just and equitable that attorney's fees 
be recovered' (Art. 2208, Civil Code) 'These are - if ap-

( 5 ) No\\. Article 1623 of the New Civil Code. 
( b) V. Tolentino, Civil Code of the Philippines (1959 Ed.), 

163, 164. 
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plicable - some of the exceptions tv the general rule that 
in the absence of 1itipulation no attorney1s fees shall be 
awarded. 

"The trial court did iwt explain why it orde·red 7>ay11umt 
of oozmul fees. 1\'eedlcss to say, it is dcsfrablc that t•he de­
cisioJt sho11fd state the 1·eason why such, au!IM"d is made, bear­
ing in 11ii11d tha.t ir must necessarily rest. on an exceptional 
situaticm. Unless of course the te.xt of the decision plain­
ly shows the case to fall into one of the exceptions, for 
instance 'in actions for legal support,' 'when exemplary 
damages arc awarded,' etc. x x x If the trial judge consi­
dered it 'just and equitable' to require payment of attorney's 
fees because . the defense x x x proved to be untenable in 
view of this Court's applicahle rulings, it wou ld be error to 
uphold his view. Othe1-wise, cvc1·y time a defeiuia:nt loses , 
attonwy's fees would follow as a maf)tcr of c01u-se. Under 
the articles above cited, even a clearly untenable defense 
would Oc no ground for awarding attorney's fees unless it 
amounted to 'gross and evident bad faith." (Emphasis sup­
plied.) 

In conformity with the above ruling and, since in the ins­
tant case, it does not appear that defendant had acted in gross 
and evident bad faith in refusing plaintiff's offer to redeem the 
property in question, or that there ere in the text of the ap­
pealed decision reasonable or equitable reasons for allowing the 
award of attorney's fees to plaintiff, we are constrained to· di s­
allow the same. 

WHEREFORE, modified as above indicated, the judgment 
of the court a quo is affirmed in all respects, with costs against 
the defendant-appellant. 

SO ORDERED. 

'Pal'as, C, J., Bengzo11, Padill.a, Bautista Angelo, T_,abrado1-, 
Concepcion, J. TJ. L. Reyes, Endcncia and Gutierrez !)avid, JJ., 
concurred. 

XIII 

In the Matter of the Testate Esta t'c of Pcf1'ouila Tampoy, 
Deceased, vs. Diosdada Albesasti11e , I'c t'~tiat1wr.Appellant, G. R. 
No. L-14322, February 25, 1960, Bantista Angelo, J. 

1. CIVIL LAW; WILLS; A WILL WHICH DOES NOT BEAR 
'l'HUMBMARK OF TESTATRIX ON ITS FIRST PAGE 
CANNOT BE ADMITTED TO PROBATE - Section 618 
of Act 190, as amended, requires that the testator sign the 
will and each and every page thereof in the presence of the 
witnesses, and that the latter sign the will and each and 
every page thereof in the presence of the testator and of each 
other, which requirement should be expressed in the attesta ­
tion clau se. ThiS requirement is mandatory, for failure t o 
compllo- with it is fatal to the vaEdity of the will. In the 
cas& at bar, the will suffers from a fatal defect be~ause it 
does not bear the thumbmark of the testatrix on its firs t 
page even if it bears the signature of the three instrumental 
witnesses and, therefore, fails to comply with the law and 
cannot be admitted to probate. 

DEC I S IO N 

This concerns the JJrObate of a document "hich purports to 
be the last will a·nd teslamcnt of one Petronila Ta mroy. Aftcl' 
the petition was published. in accordance with law and petitioner 
bad presented oral documentary evidence, the tria l court denied 
the petition on the ground that the left hand margin of the first 
page of the will does not bear the thumbmark of the testatrix. 
Petitioner appealed from this ruling but the Cou1i. of Appeals 
certified the case to us because it involves purely a question of 
law. 

The facts of this case as found by the trial court arl' a s 
follows: 

"De las pl'ueba11 result.a que Pet1·onila Tampoy, ya viuda 
y sin hijos, rogo a Bonifacio Mifioza que la leyera el testa· 
mento Exhibito A y la explicara su contenido en su casa 
en la calle San Miguel, del municipio de Argao, provincia do 
Cebu, on 19 de noviembre de 1939, y asi lo hizo Bonifacio 
Mifioza en presenma de los trcs testigos instrumentales, Ro­
sario K . Chan, Mauricio de l;i Peiia y Simeon Omboy, y 
despues de conformarse con el contenido de! testamento, ella 
rogo a Bonifacio Miiloza, que escribiera su nombre al pie 
de! testamento, en la pagina segunda, y asi lo hizo Bonifacio 
l\1iiioza, y despnes ella estampo su mar<'!a digital entre su 
nombre y appellido en prescncia de todos y cada uno de los 
tres t cstigos instrumcntalcs, Rosario K. Chan, Mauricio de 
la Peiia y Simeon Omboy y de Bonifacio I'\liiloza, y despues, 
Bonifacio Minoza firmo tambien al 11ie de! testamento, en 
la pagina 2, en presencia de la testadora y de todos y oada 
uno de los tres te.stigos arriba nombrados. La testadora 
asi como Bon ifacio Miiioza no finnaron, sin embargo, en la 
margen izquicda ni en ninguna parte de la primera pagina 
de! teslamcnto que se halla compuesto de dos paginas. Todos 
y cada uno de los hes testigos instrumentales, Rosario K. 
Chan, Mauricio de la Pefia y Simeon Omboy, firmaron al 
pie de la clausula de atestiguamicnto que esta escrita en la 
pagina SC'gunde dcl testamento y en la margen izquierda de 
la misma pagina 2 y de la pagina primera en presencia de 
la test.adorn, de Bonifacio l\1ifioza, de! abogado Rintenar y 
de cada uno de ellos. El testamento fue otorgado por la 
testadora libre y cxpontaneamente, sin haber sido amenazada, 
forzada o intimidada, y ·sin haberse ejecido sobre ella in­
fluencia iindebida, estando la misma en piano uso de sus 
facultades mcntales y disfrutando de buena salud. El tes­
tadora fallecio en su casa on Argao on 22 de febrero de 
1967 (Vease certificado de defuncicn Exhibito B). La here­
dcra instituida en el testamento, Carmen Alberastino, murio • 
dos semanas despues que In test.adora, o sea, en 7 de Marzo 
de 1957, deja·ndo a su madre, la solicit::mte Diosdada Albe-
rastinc." 

The above facts arc not controverted, there being no opposi­
tion to the probate of the will. However, the trial court denied 
the petition on the ground that the first page of the will docs 
not bear the thumbm9.rk of the testal'ix. Petltionei· nCiw prays 
that this ru.Jing be set aside fol' the reason that, although the 
first pnge of the will does not bear the thumbmark of the testatrix, 
the same however expresses her true intention to give the pro­
perty to her whose claim remain s undisputed. She wishes to 
emphasize thst no one has filed any opposition to the pNbate of 
the will and that while the first page does not bear the thumh­
mark of the testatrix, the second however bears her thumbmark 
and both pages were signed by the three testimonial witnesses. 
l\Im·eover, despite the fact that the petition for probate is un­
opposed, the three testimonial witnesses testified and manifested 
to the court that the document expresses the true and voluntary 
will of the dee'.eased. 

This contention cannot be sustained as it runs count~r to 
the express provision of the law. Thus, Section 618 of Act. 190, 
as amended, requires that the testator sign the will and each 
and every page thereof in the presence of the witnesses, and that 
the latter sig·n the will and each and every page thereof in the 
µrescnce of the testator and of each other, which requirement 
should be expressed in the attestation cl ause. This requirement 
is mandatory, for failure t.o comply with it is fatal to the validity 
of the will (Rodriguez v. Alcala, 55 Phil., 150-). Thus it has 
been held that "Statutes prescribing the formalities to be ob­
served in t he execution of wills are very strictly construed. As 
stated in 40 Cyc., at page 1097, 'A will must be executed in ac­
cordance with the statutory requirements; otherwise it is entire-
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Jy yoid.' All these i-equircmcnts stand a.s of equa.l importance 
and must be observed, a nd courts Ca.nnot supply the deiccth·e ex­
ecution of a will. No power or discretion is vested in them, 
<'ither to superadd other conditions •)r dispense with those enu­
merated in the statutes"(Uy Coque v. Navas L. Sioca, 43 Phil., 
406, 407; Sec also Saiio v. Quintana, 48 Phil., 506; Gum ban v. 
Gorecho, 50 Phil., 30 ; Quinto v. Mora ta, 54 Phil., 481). 

Since the will in question suffers from the fatal defect th:i.t 
it dO('S not bear the thumbmark of th~ testatrix on its first pa3'C 
even if it bears the signature of the three instrumental wit­
nnesses, we cannot escape the conclusion that the snme fails t o 
comply with the . law and, therefore, cannot be admitted to pl'O­
bate. 

Wherefore, the order appealed f ; om is :i.ffirml'<I, without pro-
nouncement as to costs. 

Paras, C.J., Beng::on, Monte11w.yor, Labrador, Co11cepcio11 , J.ll.L. 
R eyes, E11de~1ci<i , Barrera rwcl ~11ticrrc: Da vid, JJ., concurY.ed . 

I IX 

-/vicc11t1• Jimenez, ct al., Plain tiffs-A p]JCl/ailt~ . l' .~. Carm~·lo S. 
Cnmara, ct al., Defe1ufrrnt~-Appe/lcetl, G. R. No. L-14718, Maii:h 
30, 1960, Barrera, J. 

1. CIVIL PROCEDURE; ACTIONS; WHERE BREACH OF 
CONTRACT IS TOT AL. - The rule is that where the cove­
nant or contract is entire and the breach total, there can be 
only one action. 

2. ID.; ALL MATTERS ARISING OUT OF CONTROVERSY 
TO BE DETERMINED I N ONE AND SAME SUIT· PUR­
POSE. - When a trial is had, it is intendr!d that all ~1attcr"!\ 
growing out of the controversy ai·e to be fin:llly determined 
in one and the same suit so as to prevent a multiplicity of 
actions and to prevent the possibility of one part of the cause 
being tried before one judge which would unnecessarily harrilss 
the parties and produce needless litigations and accumulate 
costs. 

_Enriqitc E. Ma..rin.o, for plaintiffs-appellants. 
Benedicto, Sumbi11uco & Associates , for defendnnts·a!Jliellee~. 

DECISION 

This is an appeal, certified to this Court by the Gou: t of Ap· 
pea~s, from the order of the Court •>f First Instance of Negros 
Ocmdental (in Civil Case No. 3362), di smissing plaintiffs' com­
ulaint to compel defendnnt Carmelo S. Camara to execute the nc­
Cl'Ssary deeds of conveyance of 17 parcels of land in favor of 
plaintiffs. 

Plaintiffs Vicente Jimenez, Arturo Jimenez and Filomeno 
Jimenez, together with four others were: originally the rci:" is tercd 
co-Owners of the 24 lots, situated in I sabela, Bago and La Ca:·­
lota, Negros Occidental. All 24 lots were mortgaged to the Phil­
iJ;pine National Bank. Due to the owners-mortgagors' failure to 
pay their indebtedness on time, the said bank foreclosed the mort­
gage and acquired the said properties in public action, subject 
to redemption. The mortgagors renounced their rights of redemp­
tion in favor of one Adriano Golez, who appointed Vicente Jime­
nez, one of herein plaintiffs, as his attorney-in-fact. 

In orde r to redeem sai d properties from the Philippine Na· 
tional Bank, Adriano Golez and said Vicente Jimenez obtained 
the intervention and .services of defendant Carmelo S. Camara, 
and on December 29, 1931, a document entitled "E.scritura 
<fo Compromise de Venta" (Annex A) was duly executed by 
su.id bank in favor of Camara, wherein the former promised to 
sell to ~he latter all its rights and interests in the mortgaged 
properties for the sum of PSS,160.00. To give effectivity to said 
contract, the conformity of the judgment debtors, was necessary ; 
and this conformity was given , subjcc:t to the condition that 

dt:fen<lant Camarn should reconvey to Adriano Golez whatever 
rights and interests Camara may acquire from the Philippine 
Nat ional Bank over said properties. 

Simultaneously with the execution of said contract (Annex 
A), the previous owners-mortgagors ceded and renounced all their 
rights, interests, and participations on the redemption of said 
11roperties in favor of Adriano Golez. On December 31, 1931, 
Golez and his :ittorney-in-fact Vicente Jimenez, with the con. 
formity of the previous owners-moTtgagors executed a contract 
of lease known as "'Escritura de Arrcndamiento" (Annex B), in 
fnvor of defendant Camara over seven (7) of the 24 lots for a 
period of 8 agricultural years, with 2 years option, and endi ng 
with agricultural year 1941-1942. With the execution of the 
aforementioned contracts (Anne::xe.s A and B), the possessic,n, 
("ontrol, use and enjoyment of the 7 leased lots comprising Ha­
ciendas Buenavista and Aurelia were delivered to Camara. The 
other prope1-ties (17) lots situated in Bairo and La Carlota re-
mained in possession of pla intiffs. 

By virtue of said contracts (Annexes A ant.I B), Camara, on 
..":muary 2'5, 1945, paid the entire obligation of the mortgaged 
properties to the Philippine National Bank, in the amount of 
P34,541.18 as the balanre ~f sa~d debt, plus interest,.. /As a 
consequenc:e of ~aid payment (totalling P55,1G0.00·), said bank, 011 

January 3, 1946, executed a document of absolute sale known as 
, "Escritura de Venta Definitiva" on all of the aforesaitl propertietl 
in favor of Cnmara. Thereafter , Camara caused to .be registered 
in his name all the said 24 lots in the Office of the Register 
of Deeds, without notice to plaintiffs, notwithstanding his com­
mitment under said contracts, Annexes A and B, to re-transfer 
nnd reconvey all said properties to Adriano Golez, or to his as­
signs, successors-in-interests and/or cessioners, the contract of 
lease (Annex B) having terminated .:in November 1, 1942. 

Because of Cumara's refusal to relinquish possession of the 
7 lots comprising Hacienda Buenavita and Aurelia notwithstand­
ing the expiration of the lease, a complaint was filed with the ' 
Court of First Instance of Negros Occidental on March 16, 1946, 
aocketed in said court as CiYil Case No. 306, entitled "Adriano 
Golez, plaintiff vs. Carmelo S. Camara, defendant". Jn this case, 
the true import of the lease contract as well as the resUlting 
1·clationship between the parties, was put in issue. From the 
decision of the lower court in that case, plaintiff appealed to 
this Court (G.R. No. L-4460), and on October 31, 1953, we pro-
mulgated a decision in which we said: 

"l<~rom all the circumstances and equities of the caS;e. 
we are led to the conclusion t hat the relation between the 
appellant and the appelll'e was ir: effect one whereby the 
a.ppellee accommodated the appellant in the sense that he as­
sumed the obligation of paying the price necessary to i·e­
decm the undivided portions of Haciendas Aurelia and Bue­
navista from the Philippine National Bank, under t"he terms 
hereinbefore already noted, namely, that PS,516.00 wus the 
down payment and the balance was payable by annual ins­
talments of 1,000 piculs' of sugar to the bank. The appellee, 
in return, was given by the appellant a leasehold over the 
two farms, in addition to the possessiOn of the portions al­
ready acquired by the bank, with the t·ight of course to re­
ceive and enjoy the produce ther~of, after deducting only 
1,000 piculs of sugar to be delivered to the bank yearly be­
ginning with the crop year 1932-1933. No other rental was 
paid to the owners. Besides, the appellant admits his obli­
gation to pay ~mpound interest of twelve per cent on the 
sum of f'5,516.00, representing the down payment made by 
the appellee to the bank and on other amounts paid upon 
accou nt of the purchase price. 

x x x 
"There is now no question as to the right of the ap­

pellant to redeem the properties in question from the appellee, 
the latter not having appealed, and the only point that 
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arises refers to the amount whi"ch the appellant has to pay. 
From the foregoing observations we are inclined to hold that 
the appellant should pay to the appellee the sum of P5 ,5I6.00, 
kss P3,Q60.00 already paid on said item, or fl,956.00, with 
12 per cent interest compounded annually from January, 1932, 
(it being admitted under appellant 's evidence - transcript, 
pp . . 37-388 - that the sum of P'3,5£00 was paid at the com· 
mcncement of the lease contract executed on December 31, 
1931), plus the sum of ¥55,541.18 .. The latter amount, which 
was paid by the appellce on January 24, 1945, in J apanese 
Military notes must be reduced to actual Philipine currency 
under the Ba11antyne Scale, since said disbursement could 
have been repaid in the same currency by the appellant du­
ring the Japanese occupation. After being so reduced, it 
shall also bear compound interest of twelve per cent per an­
num fron~ January 24, 1945, 

"Wherefore, it being understood that the appellant is 
indebted t o the appcllee upon account of the repurcftase price 
of the land in question only in the sums of Pl,956.00, with 
twelve per cent compound interest from J anuary, 1932, 
and f296.18 with compound interest of twelve per cent fr:om 
January 24, 1945, which indebtedness should first be set­
tled by the appellant before h(' is entitled to a conveyance of 
the land in question, the ap11ealed judgment is in all other 
respects affirmed, except further that the 90-day period fixed 
therein shall be computed from the date this decision be-
comes final. 

"So ordered without costs." 

In compliance with said deci sion of this Court, Adriano Go­
IC?Z, on March 26, 1954, through his attorney-in-fact Vicente Ji­
menez, deposited with the Clerk of Court of the Cou rt of First 
Instance of Negros · Occidental the su m of P386.33 in cash and 
P25,000.00 in P. N. B. Cashier's check or a total of P25,386.33. 
Thereupon, two questions arose again in the lower court ( 1) 
whethCr the deposit in check was valid, and (2) whether Camara 
was under obligation to reconvey to Golez only the 7 lots under 
lease or all the 24 Jots acquired by him from th e Philippine 
National Bank in virtue of the contracts Annexes A and B. The 
trial court sustained the validity of the deposit and also ordered 
the reconveyance of the 24 lots. Camara appealed from this 
otder and again the case rea 0hed this Court. 

Pending this ;:ippeal in this Court, (in G.R. No. L-9160) the 
present plaintiffs-appellants, as assignee~ of Golez. filed the ins­
t<int case (No. 3364) on March 12, 1955, in the Court of First In s· 
tance of Occidental Ni!gros against the same Camara, praying, 
iJ1ter alia, that defendant be orderd to execute the necessary 
deeds of conveyance in their favor of the remaining 17 lots a c­
quired by Camara from the Philippine Nationa l Bank in the man­
ner already narrated . On August 8, 1955, defendant filed a mo­
tion to di smiss, on the grounds that (1) the complaint states 
no cause of action, and (2 ) the action is violative of the rule on 
splitting a cause of action under Section 3 and 4, Rule 2 of the 
Rules of Court. 

Resolving said motion to d ismiss and the opposition thereto 
filed by defendant on August 18, 1955, the court, on August 31, 
1955, issued an order dismissing plaintiffs' complaint, sustaining 

the view that since plai11tiffs ' predecessor-in-interest (Adriano Go. 
Jez), in the previous case No. 306 against the same defendant, 

sought the recovery of 7 of the lots mentioned in Annex B in 
pursuance to the terms thereof, where he, (Golez ) could have 

also demanded the conveyance of the other 17 lots C'ilvered by the 
s~me contract Annex B relied upon by the plaintiffs in the pre­
sent case, the instant action constitutes but a part of the former 

and, consequently, violates the rule against splitting a cause o! 

action. From thi s order of dismissal, the plaintiffs have taken 

the appeal now before us. 

We do not believe the lower court committed an error in 

clis.missing the complaint upon the ground stated by it. The cause 

(Jf act.ion in the previous case No. 306 arose out of the violation 

of the terms of the contract Annex B by the defendant Camara. 

Plaintiffs' cause of action in this case No. 3364 is predicated 

likewise in the alleged infringement of the same Annex B by the 
same defendant Camara . Present plaintiffs are successors-in-i n. 

tcrcst of Golez, plaintiff in the first case. There is on\)' one 
delict or wrong upon which both complaints are based . 

Plaintiffs, however, argue that there is no splitting of a 
cuuse of action because the issue involved in said Civil Case No. 
306 was recovery of possession of Haciendas Buenavi.sta and 
Aurelia, after the lease contract. (Annex B) expired which dc­
frndant refused to surrender to Adriano Golez, whereas the 
issue in the present case in the r econveyunce of the titles of the 
17 lots mentioned in the "Escritura de Compromiso de Vent.a" 
(Annex A). This is not e)(actly the case. T he two contracts are 
not separate from o:· independent of each other.,, They are both 
part of a si ngle transaction; to carry out and facilitate the re­
demption from the Philippine National Bank of t he mortgaged 
properties. The lease Gontract. was resorted to provide a mode 
of payment to the bank by the delive1y of 1,000 p iculs of sugar 
u year, which is the agreed rental of 7 of the mortgaged lots. 
In fine, both action s arc founded on one and the same contract, 
and the rule is that where the covenant or contract is entire 
irnd the .breach total, there can be only one action. (Blossom & 
Co. v. Manila Gas Corporation. 55 Phil. 226.) When a trial 
is had, it is intended that all matters growing out of the con­
troversy are to be finally determined in one at~d the same suit. 
The object is to prevent a multiplicity of actions and to p!'event 
the possibility of one part of the cause be ing tried before one 
judge which would unnecessarily harass the parties and produce 
ne:edless litigations and accumulate costs. (Pascua v. Sidceo, 24 
Phil. 2£: Strong v. Gutierrez Repide, 22 Phil. 9.) 

There is another reason why the questioned order of the 
court a quo must be upheld. Earlier in this opinion, we ad­

verted to the appeal taken by Camara from an 01·der of the 
trial court in Case No. 306, directing him to reconvey to Golez 

all the 24 lots in quest.ion . That appeal (G.R. No. 1.,.9160, en­

titled "Adriano Golez , plaintiff.appellee vs. Carmelo S. Camara, 

clefendant appellant"), was decided by this Court on April ::w, 
1957, wherein we held that -

''It is clear from the foregoing facts that Comani is 
bowul to convey to Golcz, no~ .ndy the inUrest. of /sUim·o 
Jimenez, Aurelia Jimenez and Vicente J\rmencz Yam:on in 
the .~even (7) lots constitutino f'he H aciendas A11rclia and 
Bmmavist.a, but, a/.~o, t:lt tt otheJ' 1tcvc11 teen (17) lvts described 
1·n the 'p1·omise to sell' and in th e contract of lease above-11um­
t io11e<l. 

"It is true that the sale at public auction of the sha re 
of I sidro Jimenez, Aurelia Jimenez a nd Vicente Yamzo11, in 
said hacic1!das, was the factor responsible for the interven­
t ion of Camara in the contracts already adverted to. T h is 
fact, and the circumstances that the property leased to Ca­
mara were said haciendas, explain the emphasis given there­
to in the pleaddings jj.nd in the former deci sions of the Court 
of First In stance and of this Court. Again, the issues then 
submitted for determination revolved on the amou nt to be 
paid by Golez to Camara, which hinged primarily on the in­
terpretation of said 'cscritura de arren<l.amiento; thus Jo­
cussing attention on said contract of lease and on the pro· 
perty lea sed - flrs.dendas Aurelia and Buenavista . 
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"However, neither suid '~ompromiso de venta', nor the 
aforementioned 'escrilura de arrendamicnto,' was limited to a 
contract of lease . The former involved, also, a cession of 
the right of redemption, which, although ostensibly made (in 
the promise to sell) in favor of Camara, turns out, in the 
language of the contract of lease - which was pa-rt of one 
whole .~chemc agreed upon by the parties - to be 'por y para 
el Sr. Adriano Go!ez'. The latte:- (contract of lease ) con­
tained, also, a promise to assign or sell in favor of Gole1.. 
In any e.vc11t, .mid 'coinpromiso de vent(~' cx!n·essly rcfet'red, 

Clerk of Court as to the date of receipt of the case by the 
court of origin and it is only on that date of notification that 
the parties are officially informed that OOl!'ll't proceedi;ngs 
arc being resumed beC'ause the jurisdiction of the trial court 
over the case which it had lost h'mporarily in view cf the 
appeal, has once agai11 been re-acquired because of the re· 
mantling to it by the appellate tribunal. Only from that 
date of notification will the diffel'cnt periods for filing plcad 4 

ings, such as, answer to the complaint, answer to the counter· 
claim, would begin to run or continue to run. 

1wt only to aaid hacienda.1, bitt, dso, to the scv611teen (17) "· 
.other lot.« therein described. Simi/,u,dy, the aforementioned 
' cscrit!tra d1i arren.damicnt-0' e.rplieit'ly states that one of the 
c•ntsiderations therefor is .:;;aid 'compro·miso de venta' of twen.­
t/J·f01!r (24) lots, tl1e itlcnt·ifitJ!Ition nmnber of, and the loca­
tion, aroo, (llld tke interest held ·in each of which are speci· 

ID.; CIRCUMSTANCES SHOWING DENIAL OP DAY IN 
COURT; WHEN COURT PROCEEDINGS J\1AY BE CON· 
SIDERED VOID. - In the case at bar, defendant was not 
given its day in court f or the purpose of answering the 
complaint after the di~mb,sal of the same at its instancc had 
been set aside by the appellate tribunal; it was not ~pprised 
of the ex-par·te petition. for default, of the order of default, 
setting the case for hcaJ"ing, and of the decision itsdf. The 
granting or denial of a petition for relief, under such cir­
cumstance does not rest upon the discn>tion of the trial court. 
Petitioner as a matter of right is ent itled to it und the court 
proceedings starting .from the order of default to the deci­
sion it~elf may be cons idered void and of no effect and not 
binding upon the petitiouer. 

fied tlt~·ein. S:i.id deed of lease, moreover, stipulates clearly 
that 'una vez hecho el pago de la cantidad dicha al · citado 
Banco Nacional Filipino, dichas pi·opiedades enbicrtas por d·i· 
cha escritura dv conipromiso de 1'enta x x x estaran todas 
e:ntregalla y en p<Jscsfrm del x x x Sr. Adriano Golez.' In the 
the light of the foregoing, and r.onsidering that the decision 
of this Court of October 3, 1953 (G.R. No. L-4460), and that 
of the former dedsion of the lower court, fixing the amount 
t -0 be paid by Golez, obviously regarded that payment thereof 
is a condition precedent to, or the consideration fo1· the· con­
veyance undNtaken to be made by Camara, there is no doubt 
in our -mind that the phrase 'fa,nd ;,,. q11cstion' 1ised 1'.n the dis­
positive part of our aforementi-Oned decision, referred to the 
f~ven ty-fonr (24) lots described in both. deeds, mid that Ca-
11mra -i.~ bo1111d to convey said twenty-/011;• (24) lots to Golez." 
(Emphasis rnpplied.) 

In t.he light of the above ruling by this Court, it b clear 
that the question involved in the instant case ha s become moot 
or 1'CS adjmlicara. · 

WHEREFORE, finding no reversible error in the order of 
the court a q110, the saree is hereby affirmed, with oosts against 
the plaintiffs-appelle.n'.s, without prejudice to their tight, as 
assignees of Adriano Golez, to enforce the decision of this Court 
in G.R. No. L-9160 above referred to, 

SO ORDERED. 

PaJ"as , C. J., Bengzon, illo11temayc1r, Bautista Angelo, Labra· 
riur, Concepcion, J. ll. L. R eyn1 and G1ttierr1'z David, JJ., concurred . 

/111mra11ce Compa11y n.f 1Vort: America, Pla'.ntiff-Appel/ce, vs. 
Pll iNppi1ic Porl'.;J TeNJiina/, Inc., Defendant-Appellant, G. R. No. 
L-14133, A 1wil 18, 1960, Montemayo1', J. 

l. CIVIL PROCEDURE; REMANDING OF CASE FOR FUR­
THER PROCEEDINGS; COURT OF ORIGIN SHOULD 
NOTI FY PARTIES OF RECEIPT OF APPEALED CASE.­
The Rules of Court are silent as to whether or not a court 
of origin whose case is taken to a higher court on appeal 
and which case is later remanded to it for further proceedings, 
has the duty to notify the parties of the receipt of said 
case in order to resume the interrupted proceedings. 'I- Reason 
and justice indicate if not ordain that the court of origin 
5hould notify the parties because, without such notice, the 
parties would not know when to proceed or resume pro­
ceedings, and file other necessary pleaditigs •n .order to 
continue the case until its termination. The notifiration of 
the decision of the appellate court to the parties is neither 
adequate nor sufficient for this purpose. 

2. ID.; ID.; DATE OF NOTIFICATION AS BASIS FOR COM­
MENCEMENT OF PERIODS FOR FILING PLEAD­
INGS. - The parties have a right to be notified by the 

DEC I SION 

This is an appeal from the order of the Court of First Ins­
tance of Muni!a in Civil Case No. 16658, denying defendant's pe-
t1tion for relief, for supposed lack of merit. 

The facts in this case are not in dispute . Sometime in 
September 1949, the Henry W. Peabody & Co. of California ship-
ped on the SS President Van Bu ren one case of machine knives 
consigned to the Central Sawmill, Inc. of Manila. Plaintiff In-
surance Company of North America, later referred to as Jn • . 
surance company, insured the shipment. The Ti1ei·chandise was 
supposedly dischai·ged into the custody of defendan'7 Philippine 
Ports Terminal, Inc:., then the contractor and operator of the ar­
rastre .service at the Port of Manila. It was claimed that said 
slii pment was never delivered to the consignee, as a result of 
which, the insurance company was held answerable therefor, pre· 
sumably paid the value thereof, and was later subrogated to the 
rights and interest of the consignee. So, the insurance com­
pa ny filed the present Civil Case No. 16658 on May 28, 1952, in 
the Court of First Instance of Manila, to recover from the de­
f•:n<lant the amount paid by it, pins ?I,000.00 as attorney's fees, 
and the costs of the su it. 

On the twelfth day from service of a copy of the C"Omplaint, 
cif·fendant Ports Terminal filed a motion to dismiss on the ground 
that the cause of act;on. had already prescribed, pursuant to the 
1n·ovisions of Public Act 521 of the 7th United States Congress, 
known as "Carriage of Goods by Sea Act", which had been made 
i;,pplicable to the RhilippineS by Commonwealth Act. No, G5. The 
trial court granted the motion to dismiss and on June 30, 1952, 
is.!'ued an order dismissing the complaint. From said order of 
dismissal, plaintiff insurance company nppe::iled to us on a ques· 
tron of law, the ap1Jeal being docketed as G. H. No. L-6420 . 

On J uly 18, 1955, this Tribunal promulgated a decis ion rn­
versing the appealed order of dismissal on the ground that the 
Carriage of Goods by Sea Act, which provides that the carrier 
and the ship shall be discharg-ed from all liability in respect of 
loss or damage unless suit is brought within one year after cicli­
very of the good or the date when the g·o.ods should have been 
delivered, <lid not apply to and could not be invoked by defendant 
Ports Terminal for the reason that it was not. a canier. Our 
c!.ecision directed that the case be remanded to the CQUrt of origin 
for further proceedings. A copy of ..-iur decision was received by 
defendant Ports Terminal on July 21, Hl55. 
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The cnse was eventually remanded to the trial court which 
received the case on September 14, 1955. The clerk of said court 
on S(>ptember 16, 1955 notified counsel for plaintiff insurance 
company of the fact that he had received the case from the 
Supreme Court. How C! vcr, according to counsel for defendant 
Ports Temiinal, not denied by counsel for the plaintiff, ::ind not 
shown to be otherwise by the record of the case, neither defend­
ant Ports Terminal nor it.s counsel was notified by the clerk of 
court of origin of the remanding of the case by the Supreme 
Court to the trial court and receipt by the latter of said case. 

On December 12, 1955, plaintiff insurance company, through 
counsel, filed an ex-parte petition for default against the defend­
ant on the ground that from the time the case was received by 
the trial court on September 16, 1955 from the Supreme Court, 
defendant had not answered plaintiff's complaint. The trial court 
found the ex-parte petition for default well founded and by order 
of December - 17, 1955, declared defendant in default and set the 
case for hearing on December 27, '1955 for the reception of plaintiff's 
evidence. On March 20, 1956, on the l:asis of evidence presented 
by the plaintiff, the trial court rendered its decision, ordering the de­
fendant to pay plaintiff P3,796.00 with legal interest from the 
date of the filing of the complaint, plus the sum of P1,boo as at­
t orney's fees, and costs. Neither the defendant nor its counsel 
was notified of the petition for default filed by the plaintiff, 
of the order of default itself which set the case for hearing . for 
the r eception of evidence of plaintiff, nnd of the court's decision. 

According to defendant's counsel, it was only sometime in 
the second week of April, 1958, when Enrique 1\L Belo of the 
law firm acting as counsel for defendant, in the coui-sc of a 
telephone conversation with Josefino Corpus, counsel for tho 
JJ!aintiff, that he learned that the judgment had been rendered 
by the trial court against the defendant. Upon verification of 
the records of the case, counsel for defendant found that a de­
cision had in fact been rendered by the trial court on March 20, 
lfi56, and that defendant had been declared in default in an or­
cier dated December' 17, 1955, in pursua11ce of an ex-partc petition 
for default filed on December 12, 1955 by counsel for plaintiff. 
This explains why defendant filed the petition for relief from 
judgment only on April 18, Hl58. In support of said petition 
for relief, defendant's counsel alleged that neither he nor his 
client was ever notified by the clerk of court that the case had 
been remanded to and received by the trial court from the 
Supreme Court, as a result of which, he failed to file defend­
ant's answer within the reglamentary period, and that no notice 
was ever received of the ex-parte petition for default, the orde r 
of default and the decision rendered. 

The legal question involved in this case is one of first im­
pression. We do not recall having had a si milar case brought 
before us. The Rules' of Court are silent as to whet her or not 
a court of origin whose case is taken to a higher court on appeal 
and which ca~e is later remanded to it for further proceedings, 
has the duty to notify the parties of t he receipt of said case in 
order to resume the interrupted proceedings. Reason and justice, 
in our opinion, indicate if not ordain that the cou1t of origin 
should notify the parties; otherwise, sai d partif.'s without such 
nr,tice would not know when to proceed or resume proceeding.:;. 
end file other necessary pleadings in order to oontinue the case 
Ulltil its termination. Notification of the decision of the appel­
l:ite court to the parties is neither adequate nor sufficient for 
this purpose. It is true that by said notification, the parties 
are advised of the decision of the appellate coui·t, either affirtn­
i11g, reversing, or modifying the appealed decision or order, and 
that tl1e case would eventually be remanded to the trial coui t. 
But when? The remanding or retu rn of a case is bound to tak!! 
time because the same cannot be done until the decision of the 
appellate tribunal becomes final, and before it becomes final, the 
appcl!ate court may have occasion to rule upon motions for re­
con sideration by either party, and for which the movants may 

ask for extension of time; and not infrequently, more than one 
motion for reconsideration is filed. So, the parties are not iu 
n. position to know when the case is actually returned to and re· 
ceived by the court of origin. It would be too much to expect 
the parties of their counsel to go to the trial court everyday 
to find out if the case has already been returned. Consequently, 
they have a right to be notified thereof by the Clerk of Court.. 
It is only on that date of notification that the parti~s are of· 
ficially informed that court proceedings arc being resumed be­
cause the jurisdiction of the trial court over the case which it 
had lost temporarily because of the appeal, has once again been 
reacquired because of the remanding t.o it by the appellate 
tribunal. Only from that date of notification will the different 
periods for filing pleadings, such as, answer to the complaint, 
answer to the counterclaim, etc., would begin to run or continue 
to run. 

In the present case, defendant Ports Terminal was not given 
its day in court for the purpose of answering the complaint 
dter the dismissal of the same at its instance had ,been set aside 
by the appellate tribunal. :"c was not apprised of the ex-parte 
y;etition for default, of the order of default, setting the case for 
hf.'aring to receive evidence for the plaintiff, and of the decision 
itself. The granting or denial of a petition for relief, under such 
circumstances, docs not rest upon the discretion of the trial 
court. The petitioner as a matter of right is entitled to it; and 
the court proceedings starting from the order of default to the 
decision itself may be considered void and of no effect and not 
binding upon the petitioner. ( I) 

IN VIEW OF THE FOREGOING, we find and hold that the 
appealed order of default and the decision rendered by the lower 
court are null and void. The order denying the petition for 
rdief is reversed. The case is hereby remanded to the court 
of origin for further procedings, with the understanding that 
the defendant·apelant be allowed to file its answer within a 
reasonable time. Plaintiff-appellee will pay the costs. 

Paras, C. J., Bengzon, Bantista Angelo, Labrador, Concepcion, 
J. fl. L. Reye{';, Barre-ra and Gntierrez David, JJ., concurred. 

I XI 
Horacio Gtian::o~~. Petitioner vs. Franci~co Aragon, Hon. Gui!· 

lcrnw Romero and T!tc Prov. She)"iff of Rizal, Respo11denCs G. R. 
No. L-14436, March 21, 1960, Bautis Ca Atigclo, J. 
CIVIL PHOCEDURE; PETITION FOR RELIEF; FAILURE 

TO OBSERVE PROCEDURE PRESCRIBED IN SECTION 
24, RULE 127 OF RULES OF COURT C'.ANNOT BE CON­
SIDERED EXCUSABLE NEGLIGENCE. - Under section 
24, Rule 127 of the Rules of Court, an attorney may only 
retire from a case either by the written consent of his client 
or by permission of the Court, after due notice and hearing, 
in which event the attorney should see to it that the name 
of the new attorney be recorded in the case. Failure to ob­
serve such procedure cannot be considered ~.s excusable neg­
ligenc.c on the part of counsel, much less a basis for relief 
within the meaning of Rule 38 of the Rules of Court. 
Ramon C. F ernandez, for petitionel". 
Delgado, Florez & Macapagal, for r€spondent. 

DECISION 

On September 21, 1957, Francisco Aragon brought an action 
ap;ainst Horacio Guanzon before the Justice of the Peace Cour t 
of Parafiaquc, Rizal, praying that the latter be ejected from the 
land mentioned in the complaint. In due time, Guanzon filed his 
answer to the compla int. Meantime, one Pablo Lozada moved to 
intervene claiming lo be entitled to the own.ershi p and possession 
of the propc1ty and when the motion was denied, Lozada in· 
stitutcd an action for mandamus before the Court of First In­
stance of Rizal. This action was dismissed,· the court sustaining 

(i) Valerio vs . Tan. G.R. No. L-844G, Sept. 19, 1955. 
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the order of the justice of the peace court denying the inter-
\•ention. 

Despite the mandamus case, the ejectment case was continued 
whcl"(!in Aragon completed the presentation of his evidence. Then 
the trial was suspended on Guanzon's petition, its continuation 
having been set for March 4, 1958 for the reception of Guanzon's 
evidence. . Of this hearing Guanzon's counsel, Atty. Cesar Leu­
tcrio, was duly ndtified, but desptte said notification neither 
Guanzon nor his counsel appeared as a consequence of which 
the Justice of the Peace Court of Parafiaque considered the case 
m.1bmjtted fdr decision. Accordingly, on April 3fr, 1%8, the 
court rendered decision ordering Guanzon to vacate the land in 
question and to restore its possession to Aragon, declaring Guan­
zon to be a builder in bad faith, and ordering furthermore Guan­
zon to pay the sum of f'l00.00 a month as rental, plus the sum of 
1'200.00 as attorney's fees, with costs. 

On June 11, 19SS, Guanzon's counsel received a copy of the 
decision, and when t.he same became final and executory, Ara­
gon asked for a writ of execution. Acceding to the request, the 
Justice of the peace court issued the writ, and the provincial 
£heriff set a date for the sale at public auction of tbe building 
standing on the land. 

On August 6, 195S, a few days before the scheduled sale, 
Guanzon filed with the Coult of First Instance of Rizal a pet­
ition for relief from the judgment of the justice of the peace cOurt 
with a prayer for preliminary injunction. This petition was given due 

. course, the court requiring Aragon to file his answer, but upon a 
motion for reconsideration wherein Aragon moved for the dis· 
missal of the petition, the lower court, after proper hearing, re­
solved to deny the petition for relief on the ground that the reasons 
alleged therein do not constitute excusable negligenee as to war­
mnt the reopening of the case before the Justice of the Peace 
Court of Parafiaque. Hence the present appeal. 

In the petition for relief filed by appellant for the !'eopeni°ncr 
of the case before the Justice of the Peace Couit of Parafiaque, 
he set forth the following reasons as justification; tl1at he did 
not- appear in the continuation of the hearing of the case set for 
.March 4, 195S because he was not notified thereof either by the 
c<-urt or by his counsel due to the circumstances stated in the 
latter's affidavit; that he could not appeal from the decision 
rendered by the justice of the peace court because he came to 
know thereof only on July 30, 1958 when he received a notice 
from the provincial sheriff that his property will be sold at pub­
lic auction on August 14, 1958 to satisfy the judgment; that 
because of the above circumstance s he was not able to present his 
evidence and so he was deprived of his day in court; that his 
petition was filed within 60 days after he learned of the deci­
sion and within 6 months after the s!l.me was ente red; !l.nd that 
he has a good and substantial defense, to wit; that he cons­
tructed a semi-complete building on the lots in question on the 
strength of a contract of partnership he entered into wi-th one 
Pablo Lozada who contributed thereto the lots aforsaid as his capita! 
and who claimed to be entitled thereto by virtue of an agreement 
to sell executed in his favor by the Director of Lands, appellant 
believing in good faith that Lozada was the owner thereof, and 
that the question of ownership of the land was still the su bjeCt 
of litigation between Aragon and Lozada in the Office of the 
President of the Philippines. 

On the other hand, the failure of appellant's counsel to no­
tify him of the date of the continuation of the hearing as well a;; 
to furnish him with a copy of the decision appears explained by 
counsel in affidavit attached to the petition for relief, which ex­
planation appellant claims to be his justification for the reopen­
ing of the case. The affidavit contains the following averments; 
that after the initial hearing of this case before the justice of the 
Peace Court of Parafiaque, appellant t.pok all the p'apers of the 
case from the affiant and turned them over to Atty. Eliseo Tenza 
so that the latter may prepare the necessary pleadings for the 

renndamus case appellant wants filed before the Court of First 
Instance of Rii:al; that because of the employment of Atty. Tenza 
as additional counsel and the fact that the papers of the case 
were taken by appellant, affiant had the impression that 
appellant has already terminated his services; that when on 
March 8, HISS he received a notice from the court 
that the continuation of the hearing would take plaoe on March 
4, 195S, he went to the clerk of court to inquire whether Atty. 
T<:nza was also notified of the hearing and when he received an 
affirmative answer, he felt that his appearance at the hearing 
was no longer necessary; that on June 11, 195S, he received a 
copy of the decision of the justice of the peace court and when 
he failed to contact appellant, he merely notified one Ponciano 
::.ievilla, a responsible employee of appellant, whom he instructed 
to relay to appellant the information that the court had rendered 
an adverse decision against him, and Sevilla assured him that hf' 
will transmit the message to appellant. 

Ponciano Sevilla, in turn, stated the following in his affi­
davit of merit: that on June 13, HISS , he received a telephone 
call from Atty. Cesar Leuterio instructing him to transmit a 
message to appellant to the effect that the Justice of the Peace 
Court of Parafiaque rendered an adverse decis:on against him; and 
that he wrote the instruction on a piece of paper and placed it 
0 ;1 his counter, but unfortunately the iSame was lost; and that 
because when he received the telephone call he had many customers 
and was busy attending to thm, he was not able to relay the 
message to appellant until July 30, 195S when appellant made an 
ii1quiry regarding said telephone call. 

In considering the foregoing circiumstances as not sufficient 
to constitute excusable negligence within the spirit of Rule 3S, the 
trial court made the following observation: 

"The petitioner mainly relics on the ground of excusable 
negligence for his petition for relief from the judgment. The 
petition states that petitioner Guanzon did not appear in the 
continuation of the trial of Civil Case No. 464 on March 4, 
195S because he did not know of said hearing as he was not 
notified of it either by the Clerk of the Justice of the Peace 
Court of Paraii.aque or by his counsel Atty. Cesar Leuterio. 
The failure of petitioner Guanzon to appear in the hearing 
of Civil Case No. 464 held on March 4, 19SS because he was 
not notified of said hearing by the Clerk of the Justice of the 
Peace did not constitute excusable negligence because there is 
no duty on the part of the Court to notify him of the hear­
ing a s he was represened by his counsel of record, Atty. 
Cesar Leuterio, to whom notice of hearing was sent. 

Thero was neither excusable negligence when Guam.on fail­
ed to attend the hearing in the Justice of the Peace Court be­
cause his lawyer Atty. Cesar Leuterio did not notify him oI 
said hearing. Notification of hearing to Atty. Leuterio was 
sufficient (Sec. 2, Rule 27, Rules of Court). If the presenco 
of Guanzon was essential jn the trial of March 4, 1958, then 
his counsel , Atty. Leuterio, would certainly have knowledge 
of this circumstance and he should have notified his client 
of said hearing. Atty. Leuterio attempted to explain that he 
did not notify Guanzon of the date of hearing nor did he ap­
pear at said hearing because he was of the honest belief that 
his services as the lawyer of Guanzon had already been term­
inated by the latter. But a lawyer, of ordinary prudence 
knows t.hat the relief of the counsel of rcoord a case MUld 
only be effected in the modes outlined in Section 24 of Rule 
127 of the Rules of Court and Atty. Leuterio had not been 
retired as counsel for Guanzon in any of the modes so speci­
fied in said Section 24. His assumption that he was already 
relieved as counsel for Guanzon had th~refore no legal basis 
so that his fai lure to appear at the hearing was no omission 
which an ordinary prudent lawyer under the circumstances 
would not have committed and hence hii said failure consti­
tuted gross negligence." (Record on Appeal, pp. 75-77) 
There is nothing in the foregoing observation from which we 
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can infer that the trial court acted erroneously or with abuse 
c;f discretion. On the contrary we find it to be in accordance with 
U:e law and to be supported by the circumstRnces surrounding 
the fai lure to appear of appellant as well as of his counsel in 
the continuation of the hearing of the case. Indeed , the claim 
of appellant's counsel that he failed to notify his client of the 
hearing because when appellant took from him the papers of 
the case to institute the mandamus case in the Court of F irst 
Instance of Rizal he got the impression that appellant has al-
1·eady te1minated their relation as attorney and client is unten­
able, f or it runs counter to the mode prescribed in Sect.ion 24 
of Rule 127 which provides that an attorney may only retire 
from a ease either by the written consent of his client or by 
pem1ission of the comt, afte1· due notice and hearing, in which 
C:Yent the attorney should see to it tliat the name of the new 
attorney be recorded in the case. Verily, failure to observe such 
procedure cannot be considered as excusable negligence on the 
part of counsel, much Jess a basis for relief within the meaning 
of Rule 38. 

The claim of counsel that his failure to notify his cl ient is 
due to the information given him by the clerk of court that Atty. 
Eliseo Tenza was also notified of the continuationr of the hearing 
cannot be entertained for, aside from the reasons stated abo\•e, 
it appears that Atty. Tenza was the attorney of record of inter· 
venor Pablo Lozada. He was only employed by appellant when 
the latter decided to institute mandamus proceedings to secrure 

. the admission of Lozada's petition for intervention on the eject-
mcnt case. 

It is true that one of the factors that may be considHed in 
ddermining the sufficiency of the circumstances that may justify 
t he: grant of a petition for relief is that the petitioner has n 
good and valid defense which, if considered, may have the effect 
of reversing or altering the nature of the decision. This 
upon the theory that a petition for relief is addressed 
to the sound discretion of the court. But here the a!­
l~·ged good and · substantial defense set up by appellant 
is that he entered into a partner:shir contract with 
one Pablo Lozada who claims to be th~ owner of the la.nd 
on which he erected a semi-complete building and that the own­
ership of said lot was still pending determination in the Office 
of the President when appellant filed his petition for relief, which 
claim is not correct, for the record shows that when said peti­
tion was filed the administrative c:1se between Lozada ancl 
appellee has already been finally passed upon by said office. 
Thus, from the record it appears that on Ap1•il 5, Hl57 the Of. 
fice of the President decided the case advel"sely to Lozad.~ by 
virtue of the api:eal taken by Aragon from the decision of the 
Secretary of Agriculture and Natural Resources, while the mo­
tion for reconsideration filed by Lozada was denied by said of­
fice on April 11, 1958. (Annex A). On the other hand, the re­
cord shows that the petition for relief from judgment was filed 
by appellant on August G, 1958 and the same was denied on 
August 20. 1958. 

We find, therefore, no plausible reason for disturbing the 
action taken by the trial com"t considering that the alleged 
s~pecial defense, even if considered, could not have the effect of 
altering the nature of the decision of said justice of the peace. 

" But it i;hould be noted that the granting or denial of 
a motion for new trial is, a s a general rule, discretionary 
with the courts, whose judgment should not be disturbed un­
less there is clear showing of abuse of diseretion. In the 
instant case, we find that the lower court did not abuse its 
discretion. While it is true that the failure of the defendants 
to appear is due to inadvertence 01· mi stake on the part of 
an employee which ordinary prudence could not have guarded 
against, we should not lose sight of the fact that the lower 
court deemed it wise to deny the motion because it consi­
dered futile and unsubstantial the defense set up by the 
defendant which, even if proven, could not have the effect 

of altering the nature of the decision . In this respect we 
agree with the trial court." (Miranda Ys. Legaspi, ct al., 
48 0.G. No. 11, p. 4822.) 

Wherefore, the order appealed from is affirmed, with costs 
ngainst appellant. 

Pa,raS-, C. J., B engzon, llfantemayor, La-bmdar, Conccpci<m, 
B11de11cia Mid G1ttie1Tez David, JJ., concurred. 

J. B. L. Reyes, J., concuned in 'the result. 
Ba'r'T"era, J., took no part. 

I XII 
David /n{;(), et al., P etitioner, vs. Go<lofredo E nriquez, Res­

vondent, G. R. No . L-13367, Feb. 29, 19GO, Reyes, J. ll. L., J . 

l. CIVI L LAW; DOC TRI NE OF P ARI DE LICTO. - Where. 
the parties to a contract are in puri dclicto, the contract can­
not be set aside or enforced by either party and the court.a 
will leaYe the parties where it finds them. 

~. ID.; POWER OF COURT TO F'I X PERIOD Of' LEASE. -
The mere absence of a provision under Aii.icle 1687 of the 
new Civil Code authorizing the court to fix 11 term where 
the rental is pa~•ablc. yearly does not prevent the court of 
power to fix periods under the general rule of article 1197 
of the same Code, especially where the contract is basically 
a compromise to settle contradictory claims and not an or· 
di nary lease . 

Ramws, Constnnti1w & Pi1i.cda, for petition.e1-s. 

Salonga, 01·donez, Gonzales & Associates, for respondent. 

DEC I SION 

This is a petition for certiorari to review the decision of the 
Court of Appeals in CA-G. R. No. 19207-R. 

For severul yeai·s prior to 1944, Eduvigis Aquino was the 
IE:ssee of Lots Nos . lG-B and 17, Block 3 of the "Capel!ania de 
C-0ncepc:ion", better known as the Tambobong Estate, and the owner 
of a house of strong materials built thereon. On April 10, 1944, 
she (Aquino) sold the said house, together with the leasehold 
rights, to the spouses David l nco and Leonor Constantino, peti­
tioners herein. In the contract of sale, it further appears that 
<>f the aforementioned lots, Andres Ochanco, Julio Sanchez, Na1·­
C:so Cruz, Moises Mangah and Florentino Magkalas hud their own 
l"l'Spective residential house!; as sub-tenants of Aquino. In Ul46, 
TC'Spondent Godofredo Enriquez purchased from Narciso Cruz the 
lnt-ter's house which he thenceforth occupied to the present. 

Sometime in L9<17, the b.ndcd property constituting the Tam­
bobong Estate was acquired by the National Government for e ..ib. 
<livi sion and resale to tenants pursuant to Republic Act 14-00. 
Both petitioners and respondent seem to have been desirous of 
purchasing the lots afore-described f1 om the Government . On 
May 6, 1952, however, petitioner David Inca, as Party of the 
F'irst Part, and respondent Godofredo Enriquez and Acasia San­
tos, as Parties of the Second .P art, entered into a contract of lease 
and waiver (Exhibit C or 3). whereby petitioner I nco agreed to 
al!ow respondent Enriquez to continue occupying the area pos­
bessed by him as long as respondent paid to l nco the sum of 
l'l.00 a month or P12.00 a year as ren tal. In exchange, respond­
ent Enriquez executed an affidavit (Exhibit D or 4) whereby he 
renounced whatever rights he had to buy the portion of the lot 
occupied by him in order that l nco might acquire the entire lot. 

As a result of the agreement, Transfer Certificate of Title 
No. 3687"7 was thereafter issued to Inco a11d his wife. Info r med 
of this fact, respondent EnriquE'z sought to have t he contract o/ 
lease annotated at the back of the title. The Registrar of Deeds, 
however, refused to effect t he annotation, on the ground that 
it did not bear the approval of the Department Secretary. Awake­
ned by that action of the Registrar, petitione"n declined to accept 
further payment of rentals, and on May 16, 1955, initiated an ac­
tion in the Court of First Instance of Rizal to ha\'C the lease oon-
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tJ"act declared null and \•oid or else to have the comt fix the du-
ration of the same. 

From the decision of the trial co\lrt adjudging the contract 
of lease to be a nu\!ity, respondent Enriquez appealed to the Court 
of Appeals. The latter modified the judgment by upholding the 
vdidity of the lease and fixing a term of ten years, counted from 
!\.fay l(l , 1955, for its duration. 

The spouses Inco, in their petition for certiorari, aver that 
th0e contract of lease is a nullity, and that the Court of Appeals 
had no authority to fix a period . 

Petit ioners base thei r first contt'ntion on the propositions that 
(I ) the contrnct of lease lacks t-he writte11 consent and approval 
of t he Sec1·eta ry of Agriculture and Natural Resources; and that 
(2J it is void without the con sent of t he wife of David I nco. 

Reliance is placed on paag raph 16 of Adm inistrative Order No. 
H-3 on Landed E states (which took dfect on November 15, 1951, 
l1aving been publi shed in the O.{fi cial Gazette for December; 195 1, 
Vol. 4i, No. 12, p . 6075) providing: 

"Proliib iCio n to Alie11atc, - The ~ppell:mt shall not sell, 
a ssign, encumber, mortgage, or transfer, his right under the 
agreement to sell or in the property subject thcrCof without 
first obtaining the written consent of the Secretary of Agri­
cul t ure and Natural Resou rces and this oondition shall subsist 
until the lapse of 5 years from the date of the execution of 
the final deed of sale in hi s favor and shall be annotated as 
a n encumbrance on the certificate of tit.le of the property 
that may be issued in his favor." 

A nd also upon paragraph 18 of the same order: 

"Any sale, assi;rm,nent, encumbrance, mortgage, ot· frans­
fer made in violation of the provisions of the next two pre­
ceding paragraphs hereof is null nnd void, and shall be suf­
ficient ground for the Secretary of Agriculture and Natural 
Re.sources to cancel the deed of sale and to order the reVer­
s ion of the land to the government and the forfeiture of 
whatever paynlents made on account thereof. I n case, how. 
ever, a deed of sale has already been issued, the violation of 
the said provisions shall be sufficient ground for the Secre­
tary of Ag riculture and Natural Resources to take appropdate 
action in comt with a view to obtaining the reversion of the 
land involved to the government. AU lands reverted to the 
gove rnment s halt be di sposed of as vacant lot." 

But the Court of Appeals held that said paragraphs notwith· 
standing, the act ion for annulment could prosper because the 
parties are in par i delic to and hence, the contract cannot be set 
aside or enforced by either party; for under the said doctrine, the 
couits will leave the parties where it finds them. 

Petitioner I nco, however, urges that the application of thr. 
pari delicto doctrine is not unlimited, in that whenever public 
policy is considered as advanced by allowing either party to sue 
for relief against the transaction, the rule does not apply. 

It may well be argued that the contract did not violate the 
administrative regulations invoked, since it was concluded before 
the government recognized Inco's preferential right to the Jot. 
But even disregarding this aspect of t.he case, we believe that the 
Court of Appeals correctly applied the pari dclicto rule, and that 
petitioner Inco nnd his wife cannot invoke furtherance of the 
public policy in order to escape from it. Undeniably, petitioners 
would not have obtained a certificate of title over the entire lot, 

practically amount to a fraud upon the respondents Enriquez. 
Such a result would not further public policy but defy all justice 
and equity. The interests of society demand that bad faith and 
fraud be severely repressed, and the Courts cannot consent to 
their futherance, directly or indiredly . 

It is noteworthy that the prohibition against alienations of 
the lots in the Tambobong estate is primarily designed to protect 
the occupants from being rendered homeless through improvidence, 
ignorance, or sheer neces sity. These dangers do not flow from 
the maintenance of the contract now before us. Neither party 
will be deprived of a homestead, their respective houses being 
erected on different portions of the lot. Fmthermore, the deci­
sion of the Court of Appeals limits the tenure of respondent En­
l iquez to ten years, and the ultimate reversion of the entire lot to 
t he registered owner is thereby assured. Thus construed, .the 
contract is not utimately violative of the purposes of the statute 
and there is no reason, therefore, why equity should not prcvaviL 

The pari delicto rule applies equally well to the wife, Leono­
ra Cor.stantino. Although not a signatory to the contract of lease 
and waiver, she has sufficiently manifestt>d by affirmative acts 
he r unequivocal concurrence to the contract in controversy (Dee 
1\Iontederanos vs. Ynopoy, 54 Phil. 457; Lo. Urbana vs. Villasor, 
5!.J Phil. 644). She and her husband .benefited from the trans­
action and continuously received the agreed rentals paid by the 
respondent from the execution of the contract until l!J55. Ac-

0ceptancc of benefits raises a strong presumption of knowledge and 
consent. 

Appellants argue that Article 1687 of the new Civil Code 
does not authorize the Comt to fix a term where the rental 
i;; payable yearly. The mere absence of a provision under Ar-
ticle 1687 docs not prevent the court of power to fix periods under 
the general rule of Article 11!J7, since this contract was basically 
a compromise to settle contradictory claims and not an ordinary 
lease. 

WHEREFORE, we find no error in the judgment of the Court 
of Appeals, and hereby affirm it, with costs against JJetitione1-s 
David Inco and his wife, Leonora Constantino. 

Pams, C, J., Bcngwn, Monte mayor, Bauti8ta, Angelo, Dabi·a­
dor, Concepcion, E'ndcni:ia and Barrera, JJ., concuned. 

Gutierrez Dav id, J., took no part. 
Padilla, J., on leave, took no part. 

/ XIII 
Ma x ima Acicrto, ct al., Pecitio11 a s, v~ . Victorina G. de La­

p~ral-, ct al., l?espomlents, G. R. No . L-15966, April 2!.J, l!J60, 
/'!a idi;; ta Angelo, J. 

1. CIVIL PROCEDURE; PERFECTED APPEAL OPERATES 
TO VACATE THE JUDG MENT OF I NFERIOR COURT, 
EXCEPTION. - The rule that a perfected appeal shall ope­
rate to vacate the judgment of the justice of the peace or 
the municipal court, and the action when duly entered in 
the court of first instance shall stand de 11ovo upon its merits 
in accordance with the regular procedure in that court a s 
though the same had never been tried before and had been 
originally there commenced, applies only to ordinary actions, 
and not to cases of ejectement which arc governC'd by Section 
8, Rule 72 of the Rules of Court which sets out a particu­
lar procedure that may be deemed to be an exception to the 
provision of Section 9 of Rule 40. 

at least without protracted li tigation, had not the spouses Enriquez 2 · 
ngreed to give up their own claims over the portion they occupied. 

SPECIAL CIVIL ACTION; SECTION 8, RULE 72 OF 
RULES OF COURT CONSTRUED. - It is settled that un: 
der Section 8, Rule 721 of the Ruh~s of Court, when the judg­
ment is in favor of plaintiff, it is l·equired that it be ex­
ecuted immediately in order to prevent fmther damages to 
him caused by the loss of his possession . 

It is equally obvious that the sole consideration for the withdrawal 
of the Enriquezes from the field was lnco's promise to allow them 
to remain in possession at a nominal rental. To annul this cove­
r.ant now would deprive the Enriquezes of any benefit thereunder, 
after the Incos had reaped full advantage from it. Without any 3. 
possibility of a return to the sfotus quo ante, the annulment would 

ID.; ID.; HOW DEFENDANT MAY STAY THE EX­
ECUTION OF JUDGMENT. - The defendant may stay the 
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execution of the judgment (a) by perfecting his appeal and 
filing a supersedeas bond; and (b) by paying from time to 
time either to the plaintiff or to the court of first instance, 
during the pendency of the appeal, the amounts of rents or 
the reasonable value of the use and occupation of the pro­
perty as fixed by the justice of Hl<' peace, or the municipal 

court in its judgment. 

4. ID.; ID. - The provision of Section 8, taken in relation to 
that of Section 9, Rule 72 of the Rules of Court, is man­

datory. 

DECISION 

On February 16, 1959, Maxima Aciert-0, et :l!. filed before the 
Municipal Court of Manila :lgainst Rohrto Laperal and his wife 
an action praying that they be allowed to deposit the rentah 
of the premises they were occupying with the court pending term· 
ination of the action, that the court declare that the need for 
the construction of a building on the occupied premi ses is not a 
ground for ejectment under the law, and that it fix a longer 
period of lease between the 1iarties considering the circumstances 
obtaining under Article 1683 of the new Civil Code. 

Defendants, in their answer, admitted the existence of the 
Jea~e agreement, but alleged that the same is on a month to 
month basi s, and that on September l, 1958, plaintiffs were. no­
tified to vacate the premises occupied by them but t hey refused 
and in view of such refusal defendants gave plaintiffs the re­
quisite 15 days notice to vacate with the warning that if they 
foil to comply with the demand an action for ejectment would 
b:! filed against them. Defendant set up a counterclaim asking 
for ejectment of plaintiffs. 

On April 11 , 1959, after trial, the t".ourt rendered judgment 
ordering plaintiffs to vacate the premises occupied by them and 
each to pay the monthly rental at the rate therein specifjed 
from December, 1958 until they shall have surrendered their pos­
session to defendants. In due time, plaintiffs appealed to the 
court of fi rst instance. 

The appeal having been given due course, the court set the 
case for hearing on June 2, 1959, notice thereof having been 
received by counsel for plaintiff~ on May 26, 1959. On May 29, 
1959, plaint:iffs' oounsel filed a motion d'or postponen1enb al· 
leging that he had a trial in Castellejos, Zambales on June ::; 
a nd 3, 1959, but due to the fact that said motion was not set for 
hearing by movant and no !?roof was presented of the allega­
tions contained therein, the court denied the motion and declared 
the appeal abandoned. From this ordf:r, plaintiffs appealed to 
the Supreme Court. 

On August I, 1959, defendants filed a petition for execution 
of the judgment of the municipal court in view of plaintiffs' 
failure to deposit. the rentals which they were sentenced to pay 
as required by the rules, which petition was granted on August 
20, 1959. And their motion for reeonsideration having been 
denied, plaintiffs interpreted the present petition for certiorari 
alleging that respondent judge has acted without or in excess of 
his jurisdiction. 

The only issue posed in this petition is whether the appeal 
taken by plaintiffs irom the decision of the Municipal Court of 
Manila to the court of first instance had the effec t of vacating 
said decision as is the case in ordinary actions as p rovided for 
in Section 9, Rule 40, of the Rules of Court. 

While in an ordinary action a perfected appeal shall operate 
to vacate the judgment of the justice of the peace or the mu­
nicipal court, and the action v,hcn duly entered in the court of 
first instance shall Stand de novo upon its merits in accordance 
with the regular procedure in that court as though the same had 
never been tried before and had been originally there commenced 
(Section 9, Rule 40), this rule only applies to ordinary act:ons, 

and not to cases of ejectment which are gove111ed by Section 8, 
Ruic 72. This rule sets out a particular procedure that may be 
deemed to he an exception to the provisions of Section 9, Rule 
40 (Torres v. Ocampo, 80 Phil., 36; Taguilimot v. Makalintal, 47 
O.G., 2318). 

Thus, it has been held that under said Section 8, Rule 72, 
when the judgment is in favor of plaintiff, it is required that it 
be exeeuted immediately in order to prevent further damages to 
him caused by the loss of his posse:ssion (Pascua v. Nable, 71 
F'hil., 186; Yu Tiong Tay v. Barrios, 79 Phil., 597; Sumintac v. 
Court, 71 Phil., 445; Arciila v. Del Rosario, 74 Phil., 445). The 
defendant may, however, stay the execution (a) by perfecting his 
appeal and filing a superscdeas bond; and (b) by paying from 
time to time either to the plaintiff or to the court of first ins­
tance, during the pendency of the appeal, the amounts of rents 
or the reasonable value of the use and occupation of the pro­
peryty as fixed by the justice of thc peace, or the mun.icipal 
court in its judgment (Secti ons 8, Rule 72). 

This is the situation herein obtained. Plaintiffs failed not 
only to put up a supersedeas bond but to deposit the rentals that 
had become due with the clerk of court thus forcing defendants 
to petition for a writ of execution. It has been held that the pro­
vision of Section 8, taken in relation to that of Section 9, Rule 
72 is mandatory (Arcilla v. Del Rosario, 8Upr-:i; Cunanan v. Ro­
das, 78 Phil., 800). 

It is true that plaintiffs claim that the action they have 
institut.<!d is for consignation with a view to securing a judicial 
declaration that the use of the premises for the construction of 
a building is not legal ground for cjectment, and is not for il­
legal detainer, but it is likewise true that defendants have put 
up as a special defense the fact that plaintiffs had been notified 
to vacate the premises after having been given the requisite .notice 
and that, a s they failed to do so, they prayed that an order of 
c.iectment be entered against them . This relief was granted by 
the inferior court. In fact, said special defense was considereil 
by the trial court as partaking of the nature of ejectmen!:.. 

Considering the Jaw and jurisprudence on the matter, we 
find no plausible reason for entertaining the claim of petitioners 
that the trial court committed a grave abuse of discretion in 
issuing the writ of execution prayed for by respondents. 

\Vhercfore, petition is denied, without pronouncement as to 
costs. 

Pa,ras, C. J ., Bengzon, f1a.dilla, ilfontcm.ayor, Labrador, CQn­
ccpcion, Endencia, Barrera a11d Gutierre;: David., JJ., concurred. 

XIV 

h lbcrto Ines-in, EulogW Torneto and Felix Waya, Petitioners, 
vs. The Ht:m. Mateo Canonoy, in his capacity as DUtrict Judge of 
the C<>urt of First lnstancr. of Zamboanga del Sur, and Vicenta 
Bcnodin, Respondents, G.R. No. L-13231, F ebruary 29, 1960, La­
brador, J . 

CIVIL PROCEDURE; N.OTICE OF HEARING; WHEN 
MOTION FOR RECONSIDE RATION WITHOUT NOTICE 
OF HEARING CANNOT BE CONSIDERED AS MERE 
SCRAP OF PAPER. - In the case at bar, although the 
the motion for reconsideration to set aside the judg­
ment was not aecompanied by a notice of the date set 
for the hearing of the motion, said motion cannot be con· 
sidered as a mere scrap of paper which did not suspend the 
period of appeal, considering that the session in Pagadian, 
Zamboanga <lei Sur, are not continuous throughout the year 
but only once a year to be fixed by the district judge and the 
attorney for the movant could not set the motion for hearing, 
not kno,ving on what date or in what month the nex t yearly 
session in Pagadian was to take place. 

v1·cenzo A. Sagun, for petitioners. 
Ber~'J,les & Bersales, for respondents. 
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DECISION 

This is an original action for certiorari and prohihition 
filed with us to reverse an order of the Court of First Instance 
of Zamboanga de! Sur, Hon. Mateo Canonoy, presiding, setting 
aside a previous order of the court dated December 2fl, 196, dis­
n1issing an action instituted· by herein respondent Vicenta Be. 
nodin against the herein petitioners, Alberto lnesin, Eulogio Tor-
1:cto and F elix Waga which is civil case No, 194 of the Court of 
First Instance of Zamboanga del Sur, Pagadian. 

In said civil case No. 194 herein respondent Benodin brought 
action against petitioners lnesin, Torneto and "\Vaga to recover 
from them damages for serious physical injuries suffered by plain­
tiff for having been thrown out of a tartanilla in which she was 
riding, which was struck from behind by a bus owned and ope­
rated by Albert.o Inesin and Euligio Torneto, and driven reck­
lessly by Felix Waga. Upon receiving the summons counsel for 
defendants moved to dismiss the eomplaint by reason of the fact 
that a final judgment had already been previously rendered bet­
ween the same parties for the same cause of action and that 
\Vaga has not been shown to have any relation with hi s other 
co-defendants, The motion was set for hearing on September 27, 
1955. The court granted the motion and dismissed the action on 
the ground that the driver of the bus had been prosecuted in the 
justice of the peace court of Pagadian for negligence, and found 
guilty, and in said case plaintiff Vicente Benodin had not. re­
St'rved the right to institute an independent civil action. 

The record shows that counsel for defendants received copy 
of the order of dismi ssa l on October 7, 1955 and on October 
31, they presented a motion for the re<:onsideration of the order 
of dismissal. The motion for reconsideration does not give no­
tice of the day set for the hearing thereof, but on December 6, 
lft56, such notice was presented a sking the cle rk of comt to set 
the motion for reconsideration for heari ng on December 22, 19.56. 
The motion was opPQsed becau se it contained no notice of hear­
ing ~md it, therefore, should be considered a s a mere sC'rap of 
fiaper which did not affect the runni ng of the period for t h:! 
judgment to become final. On December 29 , 1956 , the court be­
]{•\V granted the motion for reconsideration and set aside the 
wder of dismissal. Thereupon attorney for defendants presented 
:!.. motion to reconsider the order which is set forth above but the 
court denied this motion for reconsideration on J anuary 15, 1957. 

In the case at bar it is the claim of the petitioners before 
us that as t he motion for reconsideration, submitted by the defcnd­
t<.nt in the court below to set aside the judgment, was not ac­
companied by a notice of the date set for the hearing of the 
motion , said motion should be considered as a mere scrap of paper 
and did not produce the effed of suspending the period of appea l. 
So, it is claimed that the judge below, in setting aside the order 
of dismissal, acted in ,excess of his jurisdiction. 

It is to be noted that the Court of First Instance holds its 
sessions in Pagadian, Zamboanga del Sur, only once a year on 
the dates to be fixed by the district judge (Sec. 161, Rev. Adm. 
Code, superceeded by Sec. 54 of Republic Act No. 296). A.s the 
sessions in Pagad ian are not continuous throughout the year, and 
since it is not shown that at the time respondents herein 
presented the motion t o reeonsider the order of dismissal the 
judge of the Court of First Instance had already set a date for 
the next term, attorney for the movant, respondent herein, could 
not set the motion for hear ing, not knowing on what date or in 
wr.at month the next yearly session in Pagad ian was to take 
place. It is true that the attorney for t he respondent could have 
set the motion for hearing on the first day of the term, asking 
the clerk of court to :::et it for hearing on that date, but the 
failure to adopt such a step could not have meant negligence or 
neglect on the part of attorney for the rnovants, for said attor­
ney had the alternative to set the motion for hearii1g as soon 
as the judge has fixed the following term of the court in th at 
municipality. Under th.e rules which we have enjoined to be in-

tt1 preted liberally, and under the circumstancES, we are not pre­
pared to declare that the motion, which was accepted by the clerk 
of court, without the designation of the date for its hearin~, was 
a mere scrap of paper. Judging from the order of the respo.ndent 
court, t he next sessions after the sessions in September, 1955, 
must have taken place in October, 1956, when the inotion for 
rc::consideration in question was set fcii- hearing by oounsel for 
the rnovant-respondent. Perhaps it was only in December, 1956 
that the plaintiffs had bee~ apprized that the comt was going 
to hold its term of comt during the month of December, 195G 
and it was on the sixth day of that month that said attorney 
for the plaintiff, respondent 1ierein, promptly notified t he clerk 
and the adve1 se party of the date of said hearing. The judge, 
who should know this special provision of the Judicia ry Act on 
the holding of sessions in Pagadian, denied the motion to strike 
out the motion for reconsideration for failure to contain a no­
tice of the date of hearing, and he must have taken into account 
the fact that there is only one term of the court in Pagadian. 

Wherefore, the petition should ,be, as it hereby, denied, with-
cut costs. 

Paras, C. J., B cngzon, Montemayor, Haidista Angelo, Con­
cepcion, J, B. L. Reyes, Endencia, flarl'era un(l Gutierrez Da"l!id, JJ., 
concurred. 

I xv 
Jo se Bernabe & Co., Inc., Plaintif/-Appel/an,t, vs. Delgado Br~ 

titers, Inc., D cfendant-Appcllcc, G.R. No. L-1-1360, February 29, 1960, 
Barre1"a, J. 
CIVIL LAW; CONTRACTS; EFFECT OF ACCEPTANCE OF 

BENEFITS OF A CONTRACT. - When a third person ac­
cepts the benefits of a contract, he is also bound to accept 
the concomitant obligations oorresponding thereto. 
Perez Cardrmas, for plaintiff-appellant. 

LeoOlldio de Asis, for defendant-appellee. 

DECISION 

Plaintiff-appellant Jose Bernabe & Co., owner of a shipmenl 
of machine spare parts unloaded into the custody of defendant­
appeilee Delgado Brothers, Inc., as arrastre operator in the Port 
of Manila, filed in the Court of First Instance of Manila (in Ci­
vil Case No. 30615) a complaint against appellee, seeking to re­
cover from the latter the sum of P2,8~5.00, representing the re­
placement value of a diesel machine flywheel damaged, allegedly, 
while in the custody of appellee. Appellee in his answer denied 
liability therefor, and on the date of the hea1fog, the case was 
submitted upon the following. 

" STIPULATION OF FACTS 

"COME NOW the parties in the above-entitled case, 
through their respective counsel, and to this Honorable Court 
respectfully submit the following Stipulations of Facts : 

"L That plaintiff is the owner of a shipment C'.:insisting 
of machine spare parts unloaded from the S . S. 'BENCLEUCH' 
in the Port of Manila, under Registry No. 1434, Bill of Lad­
ing No. 22, which arrived in Manila on December 5, 1955; 

"2. That at the time the S.S. ' BENCLEUCH' arrived 
in Manila and unloaded her cargo, the defendant was the 
arrastre contractor for the Port of Manila and, as such, in 
charge of receiving cargo unloaded from vessels unto the 
piers, and delivery of same to consignee or their duly aut hOT­
ized representatives, pursuant to and subject to the Manage­
ment Contract entered into between the Bureau of Customs 
and herein defendant a copy of which is hereto attached, 
marked ANNEX 'A' and made a part hereof. The parties 
stipulate, however, that plaintiff is not a signatory to tho 
said Management Contract; 

"3. That the aforementioned shipment included a Diesel 
Engine GL913 (FLYWHEEL FOR TANG.YE) which was un­
loaded from the S.S. 'BENCLEUCH' and was received 
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at nighttime b)• defendant in the course of its arrastre ope­
rations uncra.ted and unpacked and in apparent good order 
condition, and the corresponding dean T.'l.lly Sheet therefo re 
was issued, as per attached ANNEX 'B'; 

"4. That at the time plaintiff's representative broker ap­
peared before the defendan t to take delivery of said shipment 
consigned to plaintiff, said representative requested for a 
Bad Order Examination of the Flywheel which inspection was 
conducted by a representative of the defendant in the pre­
sence of plaintiff's representative and the result of the e:x· 
amination appears in the B.O. Examination Report hereto 
attached, marked ANNEX 'C'; 

"5. That as a result of the findings of the B. 0. Exam· 
ination of thu Flywheel in question, plaintiff's representative 
filed a Formal Clain1 on December 28, 1955 in further refe.r-
ence to claim under Ref. 8193-E-12-55: 

"G. That plaintiff's representative or broker t-0ok · deli­
ver )' of the Flywheel in question from the defendant by sign· 
ing and presenting permit to deliver imported goods with 
Entry No. 99075, File No. 5100, and in reverse side of which 
there appears the following notice in rubber stamp, . to wit; 

' IMPORTANT NOTICE 

'This permit is presented subject t-0 all the terms ~d 
conditions of the Management Contract between the Bu­
reau of Customs and Delgado Brothers , Inc., dated Oct­
ober 21, 1950, and amendments thereof or alterations 
thereof, particularly but not limited to Paragraph 15 
thereof limiting the Company's liability to f500.0() per 
package, unless the value of the goods is otherwise spe­
cified, declared or manifested and the corresponding ar­
rastre charges have bee.n paid; providing exemptions or 
restrictions from liability unless suit is brought within 
one (1) year from the date of the arrival of the goods 
or from the date when the claim for the value of the 
goods has been rejected, provided each claim is filed with 
the Company within 15 days from date of arrival of goods.' 

a photostatic copy of which is hereto attached and marked 
ANNEX ' D' hereof; 

"7. That upon the presentation of the permit to deliver im­
ported goods with the defendant, herein defendant issued a 
Gate Pass, No. 36051, and in which there appears the fol­
lowing printed words, to wit: 

'The undersigned, duly authorized to respe<:tively re­
present the Bureau of Customs the above named CON. 
SIGNEE and the Arrastre Service Operator hereby cer­
tify to the correctness of the above description of the 
goods covered by this Gate Pass. Issuance of this Gate 
Pass constitutes delivery to and receipt by CONSIGNEE 
of the goods as described herein, subject to all the terms 
and conditions contained in the Management Contract be­
tween the Bureau of Customs and Delgado Brothers, Inc., 
dated October 21, 1950, and all amendments thereto or 
alterations thereof, particularly but not limited to Par­
agraph 15 thereof limiting the oompany's liability to 
f500.00 per package, unless the value of the goods is 
otherwise specified or manifei;ted, providing exemptions 
from liability unless suit is brought within one (1) year 
from the date when the claim for the value of the goods 
has been rejected, provided such claim is filed with the 
Company within 15 days from the date of the arrival 
of the goods.' 

a photostatic copy of which is hereto attached and marked 
ANNEX 'E'. 

"The Gate Pass containing the above notation was also 
duly signed by plaintiff's representative or hrnker. 

"8. That the parties herein rc'serve the right to pre.sent 
evidence on points not covered hy the above Stipulation of 
Facts; 

"9. That the parties herein reserve the right to present 
simultaneous memoranda within thirty days from receipt. of 
order admitting the Stipulation of Facts." 

Subsequently, the parties submitted a "Supplemental Stipula­
tion of Facts", as follows: 

"SUPPLEMENTAL STIPULATION OF FACTS 

"COME NOW the parties in the abov&-entitled case, and 
in accordance with the commitment made in open court on 
December 18, 1956, respectfully submit this Supplemental Sti­
pulation of Facts; 

"1. That the parties admit that; as lo the replacement 
cost of Flywheel GL-913, had plaintiff presented a witness, 
he would have identified the attached Letter, dated December 
15, 1956, of the Pacific Exchange Coi·poration giving quota­
tion of replacement cost, and which letter is her~­

of; 

"2. That to date. plaintiff has not as yet received the 
replaccement for tho Flywheel." 

On the basis of the foregoing Stipulation and Supplemental 
Stipulation of Facts, the court rendered decision which, in pa1t, 
reads: 

"The Court is of the opinio11 that the plaintiff is bound 
by the provisions of the management C-Ontract. As a matter 
of fact, it complied with such provisions as were necessary 
for it to take delivery of the cargo. Plaintiff should not take 
advantage of the management ' contract when it suits him to 
do so, and reject its provisions when it thinks otherwise. 

"The management contract provides for a liability of not 
more than P500.00. This being the case, defendant is only 
liable to this amount. 

"IN VIEW OF THE FOREGOING, judgment is hereby 
rendered in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant. 
ordering the latter to pay to the former, the amount of 1'500.00, 
plus 25% of this amount as attorney's fees. Defendant shall 
also pay the costs." 

Not satisfied with said decision plaintiff appealed to the 
Court of Appeals, but said court, in its resolution dated August 
5, 1958, elevated the case t-0 us, on U.e ground that it involves 
only question of law. 

The pivotal issue presented by the a.ppeal is whether the pro­
visions of Paragraph 15 of the Management Contract between ar­
pellee a.nd the Bureau of Customs, limiting appellee's liability W 

Pti00.00 per package of merchandise, unless the value thereof is 
othe1"W"ise specified or manifested and the corresponding arrastre 
charges had been paid, are binding upon plaintiff-appellant, de­
spite the fact that the latt er was never a signatory to the con-
tract. 

Paragraph 15 of the Management Contract in question, reads 
in part, as follows: 

"15. It is further understood and strictly agreed that 
the CONTRACTOR (nppellee) shall at its own expense handle 
all merchandise upon or over said piers, wharves and other 
designated places, and at its own expense perform all work 
undertaken by it hereunder diligently and in a skillful work­
manlike and efficient manner; and the CONTRACTOR (ap­
pellee) shall be solely responsible as an independent contract­
or for, and promptly pay to the steamship company, consignee, 
consignor, or other interested party or· parties the invoice 
value of each package but which in no case shall be more 
than five hundred pesos (P500.00) for each package, unles~ 

the value is otherwise specified or manifested, and the cor­
responding arrastre charges had been paid, including all da· 
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mages that may be suffered on account of loss, destruction, 
or damage of any merchandise while in the custody or under 
the control of the CONTRACTOR (appellee) upon any pier, 
wharf or other designated place under the supervision of the 
BUREAU, x x x." (Emphasis supplied.) 

In support of appellant's contention that the above contractual 
provision (the intrinsio validity of which is not questioned in 
this case) is not binding upon it, reliance is placed on the pro­
\'isions of Article 1311 of the Civil Code, reading thus: 

"Art. 1311. Contracts take effect only between the pa1ties 
their assigns and heirs, except hi case where the rights and 
obligations arising from the contract are not transmissible 
by their nature, or by stipulation or by provision of law. 
The heir is not liable beyond the value of the prope1ty he 
Teceived from the decedent. 

"If a contract should contain some stipulation in favor of 
a third person, he may demand its fulfillment provit;ted he 
communicated his acceptance t o the obligor before its re­
vocation. A mere incidental benefit or interest of a person 
is not sufficient. The contracting parties must have clear!~· 
and deliberately oonferred a favor upon a third person." 

Appellant argues, that in the light of the above-qu'oted article 
contracts are binding and enforceable only between the parties, 
their· assigns and heirs, the only exception being a third person 
not a party thereto, in whose favor a benefit is clearly a nd delibe­
rately conferred. Although appellant admits that the aforemen. 
tioned Management Contract contains provisions "benefitting per­
sons not parties thereto for said contract pertains to serving the 
public (sic)'', a nd that "anyone desiring to avail of such ser vices 
has the right to demand it despite the fact tha.t he was :not a 
party to the Management Contract", it claims, nevertheless, that 
such third parties can not ,be bound by stipulations and conditions 
thereunder which are onerous or prejudicial to them. 

Appellant's argument does not accord with and is not j4st. 
if;ed by the spirit (if not the letter) of the law. When a third 
person accepts the benefits of a contract, he is also bound to ac­
<"ept the concomita0nt obligations corresponding thereto. As the 
lower cour t correctly observed: " Plaintiff should not take advant­
age of the management contract when it suits him to do so, and 
reject its provisions when it thinks otherwise." 

Appellant , further, contends that the contractual obligation in 
the aforequoted paragraph 15 of the Management Contract 
limiting appellee's liability is arbitrary, unjust, and unreasonable 
being practically forced upon it, since there was absolutely no 
way for it to receive the imported cargo except by engaging ap­
pellce's services as sole operator of the arrastre service in the 
port of Manila. Its consent, it is claimed was not voluntary, and 
hence, not valid. 

In answer, it may be stated that appellant could adequately 
protect Itself, by sinlply specifying or manifesting the actual 
\-aJue of the imported cargo in the various documents required 
of it under the law,( 1) and paying the corresponding arrastre 
charges of the same, pursuant to the provisions of said paragraph 
15, and of the " Important Notice" contained in the Delivery Per­
mit and Gate Pass which its representative or broker accepts, 
signs, and utilizes, upon taking delivery of the imported cargo 
from appellee ar rastre operator, in which event, the latter ex­
pressly binds itself and undertakes to reimburse appellant the act· 
ual value of the cargo, in case of its damage, destruction, or loss 
while under its custody. If appellant failed to state the value of 
merchandise in any of these documents required by law before 
he cleared its goods, and paid only the arrastre charge based on a 
lesser value, it can not in j ustice now demand the full undeclared 
value. 

We find, therefore, t hat Paragraph 15 of the Manage:no:::nt 

( 1) Import entry (Sec. 1267, Rev. Adm. Code: written <i<'"'­
foration (Sec. 1268-6, in connection with Secs. 1269 and 1271. 
Rev. Adm. Code). 

Ccntract is binding upon the herein plaintiff.appellant. Decaion ap. 
pealed from is hereby affirmed, with costs against the plaintiff­
appellant. 

SO ORDERED. 

Bengzon, Montemayor, Ba.utiata A 11gelo, LabradOT, J.B.L. Re.r 
yea and Endcncia, JJ., concurred. 

Padilla, J. on leave, took no par t. 

XVI 
/viccnte Barcng, Petitoner, vs. The Hrm. Court of ApPcal&, 

Patrocinio Alegria and Agitst'in Ruiz, Respondents, G. R. No. L-
12973, A pril 25, 1960, Reyes, J. B. L., J . 

• . CIVIL LAW; PAYMENT OF LEGAL INTEREST . - In the 
case at bar, petitioner was in default on the unpaid balance 
of the price of • the equipment in question from the date of 
the fi ling of the complaint by A. and under Article 2209 of 
the New Civil Code, he must pay legal interests thereon from 
said date. 

2. ID. ; LIQUIDATED I NDEBTEDNESS. - Where the indebt­
edness is liquidated, the obligation to pay any unpaid balance 
thereof did not cease to be liquidated and determined simply 
because the vendor and the vendee, in a suit for collection, 
disagreed as to its amount. 
Carlos P. Barcng, for petitioner. 
Ruiz, Ritiz, Ruiz & Ruiz, for respondents. 

DECISION 
Appeal by ce1tiorari from that portion of the judgment of 

the Court of Appeals in C. A .-G.R. No. 12496-N sentencing pe­
titioner ViC'Cnte Ba reng to pay respondent Pat rocinio Alegr.ia, 
in addition to the amount of P3,600 representing his indebtedness 
Lo the latter, "sus interes legales desde la presentaci6n de este 
demanda." 

The facts insofar as material to this appeal, may be sum­
mar ized as follows: 

On November 29, 1951, petitioner Bareng purchased from 
respondent Alegr ia the cinematographic equipment installed at 
the P ioneer (now Rosamil) T heater in Laoag, Ilocos Norte, for 
the sum of P15,000, Pl0,000 of which was paid, and for the bal­
ance, Barcng signed four promissory notes falling due on the 
following dates: Pl,000 on December 15, 1951; Pl,50Q on Feb. 
ruary 15, 1952; Pl,500 on March 15, 1952; and Pl,000 on April, 
1952. 

The first promissory r.ote was duly paid by petitioner. On 
February 12, 1952, short ly before the second note fell due, the 
other respondent Agustin Ruiz informed petitioner that he was 
a co-owner of the equipment in question, and several days there­
after, Ruiz sent petitioner a telegram instructing him to suspend 
payments to Alegria of the balance .:if the price as he was not 
agreeable to the sale. On the same day, Alegria sought to collect 
t•pon the second note, but petitioner refused to pay on account of­
Ruiz' claims. Only P400 was paid on the second note and there. 
after, petitioner refused to make any more payments to Alegria 
until the latter had settled · his dispute with Ruiz . 

On March 31, 1952, Ruiz fi led suit against Alegria and pe­
titioner Bareng (Civ. Case No. 1327) for his share in the price 
of the cinema equipment in question. On May 21, 1952, Alegria 
and Ruiz reached a compromise in the case, wherein the· fo1·mer 
recognized the latter as co-,owner of the equipment sold to peti­
tioner, and promised to pay him 2/ 3 of whatever amount he could 
1·ecover from the latter. Whereupon, on May 28, 1952, Alegria 
sued Bareng for the amount of Pl3,500 allegedly representing the 
unpaid balance of the price of said equipment. Bareng answer­
ed the complaint, alleging that only P3,600 had not been paid on 
the price of the equipment in question, praYed for the rescission 
of the sale for supposed violation by Alegria of certain express 
warranties as to the quality of the equipmen~. and asked for pay­
ment of damages for alleged violation of Alegria's warranty of 
title. After a joint trial of the two cases, the lower court rend-
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ered judgm ent declaring Alegria and Ruiz co.owners of the cinema Alegria was unliquidated until its amount was fixed 
equipment in question in Civil Case No. 1527; and dismissing Ci- by the Cou1t of Appea ls at f"3,®0.00, and that conseql!-ently, he 
vii Case No. 1554, without prejudice 1.o the co-owners' filing an- cannot be made answerable for interests on the amount due before 
other actions against petitioner Bareng for the balance of the judgment in the Court of Appeals. The argument is completely 
price of said equipment. On appeal to the Court of Appeals by untenable. The price of the equipment in question under peti­
both parties, the decision of the court a. q110 was reversed and tioner and Alegria's contract of sale was determined and known, 
instead, Bareng was ordered in Civil Case ·No . 1554: to pay Alegria hence, liquidated; and the obligation to pay any unpaid balance 
the sum of P3,600 plus legal interests from the filing of the com- thereof did not cause to be liquidated and detennined simply be­
plaint; and in Civil Case No. 1527, Alegria was ordered to pay c1't1se vendor and vendee, in the suit for collection, disagreed as 
Ruiz 2/ 3 of the total amount he would recover from Bareng in to its amount. If petition~r had wanted to free himself from 
Civil Case No. 1554. Not agreeable to that part of the decision any responsibility for interest on the amount he had always ac­
making him liable for legal interests on the pdncipal amount due knowledged he still owed his vendor, he should have deposited the 
to Alegria, Bareng, as already stated , appealed to this Coult. same in Court at the very start of the action. 

Petitioner Bareng claims he is not liablj to pay interest t o 
Alegria .because he was justified in suspending payment of the 
balance of t he price of the equipment in question from the time 
he learned of Rui z' adverse clai ms over said equ ipment. Iii fact, 
Bareng adds, even the Court of Appeals found that "bajo dichas 
circumtancias, la actitud de! demando Vicente Barcng de sus­
pender el pago de aquel saldo de P3,600. 00 estuvo justificado". 

The right of a vendee to suspend payment of the price of 
the thing sold in the face of any danger that he might be disturb­
ed in its possession or ownership is conferred by Article 1590, 
New Civil Code, to wi t : 

.. As for the other errors raised by petitioner in his brief, we 
need not consider them because they were not ra ised in the pl'ti­
tion for review and are, therefore, considered waived. 

WHEREFORE, the decision appealed from is affirmed -in 
tuto, with costs against petitioner Vicente Bareng. 

Paras, C. J., Bengzon, Padilla., Mo'item\!fyor, Ba1itista Angelo, 
LabradtYr, Concepcion, Barrera and Gutierrez Davi((, JJ., concurred. 

XVII 

lredro C. Ca.11Ut.S. Petitioner, vs. 1'lw Ho n. Cou1·t of A7>pcals, 
H on . Ed1w1Tdo D. E nriq11ez, Judge of the Cou1·t of First Instance 
uf Negros Occidentul, and L eon G. Moya, Resp-011dents, G. R. N'o . 
L-13125, February 13, 1960, R eyes, J. B. L., J. 

"Art . 1590. Should the vendec be disturbed in the ·pos­
session or ownership of the thing acquired, or should he ha,•e 
reasonable grounds to fear such disturbance, by a vindicatory 
action or a foreclosure of mortgage, he may suspend the pay­
ment of the price until the yendor has caused the distur- 1. CIVIL LAW; OBLIGATIONS; PAYMENT BY ONE OF 

THE SOLIDARY CO-DEBTORS. - In the case at bar, the 
payment by the surety to appellee extinguished the obligation 
of the two solidary co-debtors to appe\Jee and the juridical 
tie between the creditor and the solidary debtors was dissolved 
and, therefore, there is no more need to maintain nppellant'>i 
appeal from the decision of the lower court ordering him and 
his co-debtor to pay their obligation to the appellee. 

APPEAL; WHEN APPEAL MAY ' BE DISM ISSED. -
Where it would serve no useful purpose to decide the appea l 
because no actual r elief ot' practical result can follow there­
from, the appeal will be dismised. 

bance or danger to cease, unless the latter gives seeurity for 
the return of the price in a proper case, or it has been sti pu­
lated that, notwithstanding any s uch contingency, the vendee 
shall be bound to make the payment. A mere set of trespas~ 
shall not authorize the suspension of the payment of fhe 
price." 

There is no qu~stion that , as found by the Court of Appeals, 
11etitioner Bareng had the right to suspend payment of the balance 2. 
of the price of the cinema equipment in question to his vendor, 
respondent Alegria , from the time he was informed by Ruis of 
the latter's claims of co-own ership ther eof , especially upon his i·e­
CEipt of Ru iz' telegram wherein the latter asserted that he was 
not agreable to the sale. Nevertheless, said righ t of Bareng 
ended as soon as "the vendor has caused the disturbance or dange1· 
to ciense''. In this case, respondent Alegria had caused the di ~· 

turbance or danger to petitioner's ownership or possession to 
cease when he (Alegria) reached a compromise with Ruiz in Ci­
vil Case No. 1527 whereby Ruiz cxpr ei;sed his conformity to the 
si: le to Bareng, subject to the payment of his share in the price 
by Alegria. Peti t ionei· Bareng cannot claim that he was not 
v.ware of t hi s compromise agreemen t between the two owners, be­
cause he was a pa rty-defendant in Civil Case No. 1527, From 
the time Alegria and Ruiz reached this settlement, there was no 
longer any danger or threat to Bareng's ownership and full en ­
joyment of the equipment he bought from Alegria. And 
i t . was by virtue of t h is settlement that Alegria, two 
(iays later, :oued petitioner for the unpaid balance of the 
price of said equipment. Jn his .:rnswer to Alcgria's 
plaint, petitioner admitted his indebtedness to Alegria 
in the amount of P3,600, yet he <lid not tender payment of said 
:>mount nor did he deposit the same ;n court, but instead sought 
to have the sale rescinded upon claims of violation of warranties 
by Alegria that the Court of Appeal s found not to have been 
proved or established . It is clear, therefore, that petitioner Ba· 
reng was in default on the unpaid iJalance of t he price of the 
r.quipment in question from the date of the filing of the complaint 
by Alegria, and under Article 2209 of the Ch·il Code, he must 
pay legal interests hereon· from said date. 

Petiticner also argues that his indebted ness to respondent 

Dcogracias T. Reyes & L uison & Cruz, for petitioner. 
Delgado, Flores & Ma capagal, for respondents. 

DECISION 

On July 13, 1956, herein respondent Lem G. Moya sued 
petitioner Pedro C. Camus and the Luzon Surety Co., In. in the 
Cou rt of First Instance of Negros Occidental for the payment of 
a promissory note in the sum of P2,500 , signed by Camus and 
guaranteed by a surety bond of t he Luzon Surety Co., Inc. At 
t he trial, petitioner Camus failed to appear; whereupon, the coU l't 
heard plaintiff's evidenC'e and rendered judgment condemning the 
defendants to pay, jointly ~nd severally, the amount claimed by 
11lainti ff. Camus £Ought reconsideration of the judgment and a 
new trial, alleging-, inter lalia., that he had a good defense to the 
complaint, namely, usury ; and when the cou rt den ied both, he 
filed his notice of appeal, record on appeal, and appeal bond. 
Said appeal was, however, disallowed by the court because Cnmus' 
motion for reconsideration and new trial was found to he pro 
forma . Camus applied to the Court of Appeals for a wl'it of 
mandamus to have his appeal allowed, but the latter court sus­
tained the <lisallowance thereof by the trial court. From this 
j udgment, Camus nppealed to this Court by . certiorari. 

After the filing of appellant's brief, appellee Moya moved to 
dismiss the present appeal for the reason that appellant's co-de­
fendant, the Luzon Surety Co., Inc.., had already paid the judg­
ment of the couit below in h is favor, so that the issues in this 
c.a se had become academic; and waived the filing of an appellee's 
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brief. Consideration of the motion for dismissal \·ra3 deferred 

by us until the case is set for deliberation on t he mel"its. 

We fin<l uo necessity to go into the merits of the appeal, 

:for, upon a careful consideration of the reasons adduced in appel­

Jee's motion to dismiss, we agree thnt the appeal should .be dis­
missed. 

Appellant does not deny that his co-defendant and so\idary 

co-debtor, the Luzon Surety Co., Inc., had already paid the judg­

ment of the lower court during the pendency of his petition fot· 

mandamus in the Court of Appeals. Article 1217, New Civil Code, 

provides that "'payment made by one of the solidary debtors ex­
tinguishes the obligation" . The payment by the Luzon Surety 

Co., Inc. to nppellee, therefore, extinguished the obligation of the 

two solidary co-debtors to appellee Moya, and the judicial tie bet· 

ween the creditors on the one hand, and the solidary debtors, on 

the other, was dissolved thereby. For this reason, there . is no 

more need t o maintain appellant Camus' appeal from the decision 

of the lower court ordering him and h is co-debtor to pay their 

obligation to appellee l\Ioy.:i.. Whatever controversy remains from 

here on is solely between the two co-debtors . 

Appellant argues, however, that the payment made by his co· 

debtor was premature and, therefore, did not extinguish the prin­

cipal obligation. We can not see how said payment can be _pre­
mature when the obligation of appellant Camus and t he surety 

company to appellee was based on a promissory note that was 

long overdue when the complaint was filed. Even assuming that 

:ippellant's only alleged defense of usury to the complnint is true, 

the same does not in any way affect the m.:i.turity and demand­

&bility of the debt but if sustained would only reduce the credit­

or's recovery. There is no question, of course, that the payment 
by appellant's co-debtor to appellee did not extinguish his defense 

of usury, which he may still set up against his co-debtor when 

he is sued by the latter-; but until the surety company files s uch 

action against app~llant, it is purely an academic matter whether 

~ppellant is entitled to such defense or not. 

Appellant also urges that the Luzon Surety Co., Inc. should 

be substituted as plaintiff in this action to avoid multiplicity of 

suits . We have no power to order such substitution , since the 

st.rely company has not even intervened or shown any interest in 
these proceedi ngs relative to appellant'!!. right to appeal from the 

PRES. EISENHOWER SPEECH . (Continued /'l'OITt page 164) 
programs to improve conditions in which human freedom can flour­
i8h. 

We must, collectiVely and individually, strive for a world in 
which the rule of law replaces the rule of force. 

Your country and mine have reaffirmed our faith in the prin­
ciples of the United Nations Charter. We share a common de­
sire to settle international disputes by peaceful means. The task 
is not an easy one. Communist intransigency at the conference 
table, whenever they do agree to sit at one, makes the attainment 
of an equitable agreement most difficult. Moreover, the record 
of Communist violations of agreements is long. The continuation 
of Communist provocations, subversion, and terrorism while ne· 
gotiations are underway serves only to compound the difficulty 
of arriving at peaceful settlements. 

But we shall never close the door to peaceful negotiations. 
All of us, all free nations always hold out the hand of friend ship 
as long as it is grasped in honesty and integrity. We shall conti­
uue to make it clear that reason and common sense must prevail 
over senseless antagonism and distorted misunderstandings and 
propaganda. The arms race must be brought under control and 
the nuclear menace that is poised in delicate rnspcn zion over th~ 

lower court's judgment. Neither we nor appellunt can dictate 

the step which the surety company may choose to · take against 
3 J)pellant for the protection of its interests. 

Finally, appellant daims that the dismissal of this case wou ld 

necessitate the filing of another action by him against the appel­

lee for the recovery of whatever usurious interest t he latter had 
('Xacted from him. The claim is completely untenable. Appel­

lant can file such action against aI'.pellee only if he had already 
paid his indebtedness to the latter plus the alleged usurious in­

terest. But it was precisely his failure to pay that compelled the 

appellee to sue him for payment of thll debt , and appellant 's de­

fense of usury, even if true, would, as already stated, only re­

duce his liability to his creditor, but \·:ould not entitle him to re­

c0ver any amounts from the latter. And even if appellant's so­

lidary co-debtor, the surety company, had paid appellee more than 

it should (granting arguendo that the promissory note sued upon 

represented capital plus usurious interest, as appellant claims), 

such overpayment gives appellant no cause of action to collect 

from appdlee what his solidary co-debtor had overpaid the Iattc?r, 

tiut his defense of usury would only serve to reduc~ his liability 

when he is sued by the Surety company. 

All in all, vie agr~ with appellee that it wnuld serve no use­

, ful purpose to still decide the present appeal, since no act ual r e­

lief or practical result can follow therefrom. A11 we held in 

Velasco vs. Rosemberg, 29 Ph.ii. 212, ' 'if pending an appeal, an 

event occurs to grant any relief", and "similarly, where a liti­
gation has ceased to be between parties having an adverse inte. 

rest, the appeal will be dism.issed." 

As to the merits of the case, suffice it to point out that ap­

pellant Camus has not appended to Ois petition for review any 

copy of h is motion fo r new trial in the Court o! First Instance, 

and without it, this Coure is in no position to say that t he Court , 

0( Appeals committed error in declaring it insufficient and 

pro Jorma. 

WHEREFORE, the present appeal is dismissed. Costs against 

appellant Pedro Camus. 

Paras, C. J ., Bengzo11, PadiU.a, Montcmayo1·, Baut fat a Angelo, 

[,abrador, Ccmccpcfon, Endencia, Ba'l'rera and GntiC>r1·ez David, 

heads of all mankind must be eliminated . Thi s, I am convinced , 
can be done, without appeasement or sunende;·, by continuing a 
course of patient, resourceful and businesslike dealings with the 

Soviet leaders. 

The goal of a world peace in friend~hip wit.h freedom is so 
worth the attaining that every feasible and honorable avenue must 
be explored. The support, understanding and participation of all 
who cherish freedom is essential to this noblest endeavor in his­
tory. The Philippine contribution will be mighty in its impact 

on the future. 

And now my friends I cannot cJ03e without attempting once 

more to express my ve ry deep appreciation of all the cordial hos­

pitality and friendliness that has been exhibited to me and to 
all the members of my party during my too brief stay in this 

lovely cou ntry. We know that in greeting us along the highway 

or in a magnificent crowd such as this, you are reall:¥ expressing 

:\-·our basic affection for the American people, (Applause) And 
I assure you, all of you, as the spokesman · <>f the Amer ican peo­

ple that their concern for :rou, your fate, your future, your well· 

being, their affections for you is equally deep with yours. 

Thank you. (Applause). 
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